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Report of the Board

The Board is pleased to present its Directors' Report, Strategic Review Report Value for Money (“VFM") self-
assessment Statement of the Board on Internal Controls and the audited consclidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2019,

Directors’ Report for the year ended 31 March 2019

The Group

Yarlington is a Community Benefit Society, registered with the Financial Conduct Authority, It is not for profit and
an exempt charity, registered as a Private Registered Provider with the Regulation of Social Housing ("RSH").

Business Analysis

Yarlington operates across the South West. We provide affordable homes for rent and shared ownership, as
well as providing sheltered and extra care housing for the elderly. Yarlington has an active new build
development programme across the South West,

Yarlington has four wholly owned subsidiaries. Yarlington Homes Ltd ("YHL") is a company whose purpose is to
develop homes for outright market sale and to act as a procurement vehicle for YHG's development
programme. Inspired to Achieve ("IZA") is a social enterprise company providing employment and training
services, Yarlington Property Management Ltd ("YPM") provides a responsive repairs service to third parties.
The Registered Office of all the Companies in the Group is in Somerset, Yarlington Treasury Services Pl
("YTS") is a special purpose vehicle, set up for funding purposes.

Regulatory Reguirements

As a Private Registered Provider ("PRP"), Yarlington is regulated by the Regulator of Social Housing (RSH).
Performance is assessed by means of regular assessments against the Regulatory Framework. In September
2018 we were subject to a routine In Depth Assessment (*IDA") from the RSH. This involved rabust review of
governance and viability arrangements, including risk management, board effectiveness and financial planning
and stress testing. Following that IDA we were awarded the top requlatory gradings of G1 for Governance and
V1 for Viability, and following the 2017 Annual Stability Checks from the RSH we have maintained a G1/V1
rating.

We undertake a self-assessment annually of our compliance with the National Housing Federation (NHF) Code
of Governance and can confirm that for 2018-19 we are in full compliance.

We also undertake a self-assessment annually of our compliance with the RSH regulatory standards; this
includes a full compliance exercise against the economic and consumer standards. Following the completion of
the self-assessment we can confirm that we are fully compliant with the Governance and Financial Viability
Standard and all other regulatory standards.

Governance and Management

As at 31 March 2019 the Board consisted of eight Non-Executive Directors, and ohe Executive Directors. There
are two committees of the Board: Audit & Risk Committee and Remuneration Committee. The Group and its
subsidiaries are managed by an Executive Team headed by the Managing Director and supported by four
Executive Directors. The Managing Director is also a Board member.

The Group adopted the National Housing Federations (NHF) Code of Governance during 2018/19 and adopted
the UK Corporate Governance Code from the 15 April 2018,

Board members are remunerated and the amounts are disclosed in note ©.

Customer Involvement and Consumer Standard

The consumer standards are designed to ensure that our customers have the right to be empowered and
involved in the organisation and that they have a suitable and decent home, that homes are let in a transparent
and fair manner and to ensure that our neighbourhoods and communities are kept safe and clean. There are
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four consumer standards and although we are compliant with the standards, we are continuously seeking ways
in which we can engage with our diverse range of customers to enhance the overall customer experience.

We believe that the voice of our customers is at the heart of what we do, We regularly consult with our
customers to seek their input to ensure that we are delivering high standards of service delivery. Some recent
examples of our consultations include our asset management strategy, our customer feedback and complaints,
scrutiny and our customer charter. We have also procured a new consultation tool so that we can consult with
our customers in an inclusive manner, and to optimise the feedback from a wider range of customers. We
provide feedback to our customers following the consultation by means of "you said, we did" on our customer
portal.

Risk Management

The risk management and assurance framework is well embedded across the Group. As part of the framework
the Board receive and review the guarterly strategic risk register, along with a summary of key issues to note.
This may be either significant changes to levels of risk, changes to controls or assurance; or new risks. The
Audit & Risk Committes review the full risk register and the risk management processes twice a year,

The Board maintain a Risk Appetite Statement which sets out the tolerance to risk in order to achieve the
strategic objectives.

The Strategic & Key Risk Registers overarch all the registers and act as a tool for flagging any high risk areas to
the Executive Team and Board, along with considering strategic risks to the Group. Key strategic risks facing
the Group are: growth and diversification; uncertainty in external operating environment; ineffective governance
and leadership; income and cost control; and health and safety.

Operating Environment

We continually analyse and review our operating environment. We have analysed and stress-tested the external
influences upon us, particularly governmental and economic influences, the potential impact of Brexit, and the
impacts of changing housing policy. Despite the current economic conditions, we consider that our current
operating environment remains positive in that it offers substantial opportunity for Yarlington to grow and create
additional affordable housing for rent and home ownership.

Activities
As at 31 March 2018 YHG had the following mix of homes in management.

2019 2018

Numbher Number

General Needs — social rents 7,148 7,142
General Needs — intermediate/affordable rents 480 471
Retirernent Living - Sheltered 1,403 1,323
Extra Care housing 216 205
Extra Care housing — intermediate/affordable rents 50 50
Shared Ownership 766 701
Key Waorker 36 36
Market Rent i d 7
Leaseholders 303 303
- ' 10,409 10,328

We have an active development programme of new build houses for rent and shared ownership and outright
sale.
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Gift Aid
For the year ended 31* March 2018, YHG will receive Gift Aid payments of £0 from YHL (2017: EQ, EO from
YPM (2018: £27k) and £0 from Inspired to Achieve (2018: nil),

Insurance
The Group maintains insurance policies for members of the Board and Executive Directors against liabilities in

relation to the Group.

Charitable Donations
The Group made donations totalling £91,000 to local community projects during the year (2018: £162,000).

Going Concern

The Board, after reviewing the Group's budgets for 2019/2020 and the medium term financial position as
forecast in the 30-year Financial Plan, is of the opinion that the Group has adequate resources to continue in
business for the foreseeable future. As part of this review, the Board has considered the headroom available an
loan covenants. This is significant and deemed sufficient to cover the requirements of the Group. The financial
statements are therefore prepared on a going concern basis.

Statement of Compliance

The Board confirms that the Directors” Report and Strategic Report have been prepared in accordance with the
principles set out in the 2018 SORP for Registered Providers and the Co-Operative and Community Benefit
Societies Act 2014,

Disclosure of Information to Auditors

The Directors who held office at the date of approval of this Directors’ report confirm that, so far as they are
each aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Group's auditors are unaware: and each Director
has taken all the steps that hefshe ought to have taken as a Director to make himself/herself aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the Group's auditors are aware of that information.
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Strategic Report for the year ended 31 March 2019

Objectives and Strategy
In March 2017 we launched our new corporate strategy, Yarlington NextGen 2017-2021. This was developed in
consultation with staff and stakeholders and was in response to the significantly changing landscape in which
we operate. NextGen strategy demonstrates a fundamental re-examination of our organisation, but not at the
expense of our social purpose. Increasingly we will be a housing provider for everyone, alongside supporting
our residents into employment through our partnership with our subsidiary Inspired to Achieve. The three
strategic objectives are;

s Serve our 23,000 customers in the most economic, efficient and effective manner

» Significantly increase the number of new homes we provide in the South West

« Implement a new service and operating model, consistent with the needs of our consumers.

The Group is committed to maintaining and improving its housing stock over the next 30 years. Our assel
management and sustainability plans demonstrate sufficient funding available to maintain and improve our
homes over the next 30 years, ensuring that our customers live in a safe, fuel efficient property. The Grenfell
tragedy has rightly placed resident safety front and centre of housing providers priorities.  Working with Devon
and Somerset Fire and Rescue Service we will complete surveys of all our buildings by the end of October and
contractors have been appointed to undertake the safety improvements the surveys have identified.

Partnership Working

NextGen signalled our intention to ‘be open and active in realising transformative collaborations™. In May 2019,
we announced we are in exclusive discussions with the Radian Group, about the potential for a future
partnership. A new organisation, of 38,000 units, will have the financial capacity to tackle the housing crisis
across the South of England and our social purpose ambitions will target health and empowerment activities in
our communities.

Key Achievements

We continue to deliver strong and stable financial performance despite an uncertain operating environment. In
September 2017 we secured a 35 year fixed rate £120m Bond facility. £60m of this is a deferred Bond structure
with the Pension Investment Corporation; and £680m are retained Bonds. The bond is listed on the London
Stock Exchange.

Our NextGen strategy signalled a move to develop new homes in Bristol where there is an acute housing need.
By March 2019 we had completed 26 new homes for affordable rent and shared ownership and have a further
488 plots in the pipeline.

We continue to be rated as a G1/V1 organisation by our regulator and retain a strong Moody's rating of A3.

Our development subsidiary YHL completed its first market sale development for some years. This scheme of
17, 3 and 4 bedroom properties in Burnham-on-Sea generated profits of £1m and the profits will cross-subsidise
our affordable homes development programme. YHL will continue to look for opportunities to generate profits
through market sales, it is currently develaping a 24 unit site in Castle Cary and has options for 112 others
providing a pipeline to meet our ambitions of developing 50 market sale homes per annum.

We have also continued to dispose of our poarer performing assets (lower demand and poorer fuel efficiency)
using the proceeds to increase our capacity to build more affordable homes.
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Our Key Performance Indicators
Our Board monitors performance each guarter. Details of the board scorecard is provided in the value for
monay disclosure,

Accounting framework

The group is required to prepare its results under Financial Reporting Standard 102 (FRS 102): The
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland.

Financial Performance

Financial performance is monitored monthly and forms a key part of our Balanced Scorecard. 2018/19 was a
very successful year financially for the Group, delivering an operating surplus of £21.8m and an operating
margin of 34% (2017/18; operating surplus of £22 2m; aperating margin of 39%).

The surplus does not take into account our capital expenditure on new homes; or investment in existing homes.
In 2018/19 we invested £15m in new homes and £7m in capitalised improvements to existing homes.

Qur operating margin was 34.2% (2018: 39.3%) and our net margin was 22% (2018 26.2%).

87% of our turnover was from our core activity, social housing activities, with 9% (2018: 8%) of our turnover
relating to shared ownership sales. These sales delivered an operating margin of 22% (2018: 28.7%).

An actuarial gain of £1.2m in respect of pensions was recognised in the year (2018: gain of £4.4m) reflecting the
changes in the underlying scheme assumptions, net of return on assets.

We delivered turnover of £5.4m from sales of assets of which £1.5m (2018: £2m) relates to preserved Right to
Buy sales. Of those proceeds, £1m (2018: £1.4m) is paid to South Somerset District Council under an
agreement dating back to 1999,

Key Performance Data

Activi 2019 2019 2018
ty Turnover Operating Operating
surplus surplus
E’000 £'000 £'000

~ General needs 38,128 14,488 15,167
Supported 9,274 2817 2,747
Shared ownership 2,101 1,470 1,460
Key Worker 392 a7 164
Market Rent 30 23 45
Other 14,004 2,960 2,656
63,929 21,855 22,233
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Debt Profile

At 31 March 2018 the Group holds loan facilities totalling £359m comprising a term loan of £199m a revaolving
facility of £25m, together with two bonds totally £135m. One of the bonds has a retained portion of £60m and a
deferred element of £60m. The details of the drawn loans are as follows:

Loan Facility 2019 2018 Ave Interest Ave Interest
£'000 £000 Rate Rate
2019 2018
Fixed rate loans 200,444 182,769
\ariable rate loans 20,000 19,230
Total loans drawn 220,444 201,999 3.45% 3.53%
Undrawn loan facilities capable 39,341 49 342
of immediate drawdown
Market Value of loans drawn 207,450 187,400
Duration (years)® 17.64 17.57

* Duration is a measure of the exposure of the debt portfolio to fixed interest rates

Financial Instruments

The Group uses both embedded and standalone swap arrangements o manage its interest rate risk
Embedded swaps are provision in a contract that modifies the cash flow of a contract by making it dependant on
some underlying measurement e.g. CPl, RPl etc.

During the year there were eight embedded swaps held with Nationwide and four embedded swaps held with
Lioyds. These are treated as basic financial instruments under FRS 102,

There is also one standalone interest rate swap arrangement with Lloyds, which is considered an effective
hedge and fair value movements are taken through the cash flow reserve.

The Group only borrows in stering so there is no currency risk. Any surplus cash balances are invested in
approved UK institutions.

Further details of the financial instruments held at year end can be found in note 20.

Cash Flows

Cash inflows and outflows for the year under review are contained in the consolidated statement of cash flows
and the cash flow notes shown on pages 31 - 32. The main net cash inflows from operating activities are from
housing management activities. The net cash outflows from capital expenditure are costs on development of
properties and planned maintenance improvements. The net movement on financing is £12.9m (2018: £7m
inflow), interest paid of £7.3m (2018: £6.8m) offset by a net £2.5m (2018: £0.3m} of additional grant funding,
grant funding utilised of £0.6m (2018: £0.6m) and new loans of £19.5m drawn down in the year (2018: £21.4m).

The net change in cash and cash equivalents was an increase of £18.8m (2018; increase of £18.6m). Short
term deposits have increased by £18.8m as a result of drawing £19.5 of new loans, physical cash held at bank
has remained relatively stable in the year.



Yarlington Housing Group
Annual Report and Financial Statements
Far the Year Ended 31 March 2019

Liquidity

The Treasury Policy requires that cash investments are available for immediate drawdown to cover the cash
requirement for the next six months. The requirement for the next year must be covered by existing loan
facilities (whether or not they are capable of immediate drawdown). The following table shows that both these
targets will be met.

& months to 12 months to

300919 31.03.20

£'000 £'000

. New cash requirement . 0426 27,352
Available funds;

Cash 50,528 50,528

Undrawn loan facilities capable of immediate drawdown 39.341 39,341

Undrawn overdraft facility 250 250

Total available funds g0,119 90,119

There are no significant seasonal influences on the timings of the borrowing requirements. The main influence
on borrowing requirements is the timing of expenditure on the development programme,
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2018/19 Value for Money disclosure

Our approach to Value for Money

Our approach to securing Value for Money is embedded in our corporate strategy, NextGen that
covers the period April 2017 to March 2021; in November 2018, our Board approved our VM strategy
that identified a savings target of £499 000 for the remainder of the strategy.

The three founding objectives of our strategy are:

Strategic objective _ Qutcome

Customers — serve our customers in the Customers highly satisfied with our service
most economic, efficient and effective offer

New homes — significantly increase the 1500 affordable homes built

number of new homes we provide in the

South West -
MNew service — to implemeant a new service Management cost located in top 25% of our
and operating model, consistent with the peer group

needs of our customers

These objectives are underpinned by an ambition to deliver value for money, ensuring that profits are
re-invested in the business. Value for Money is central to our plans and remains a priority whether or
not the proposed partnership with Radian goes ahead.

\We achieved VM savings of £182,400 in the past year and cashable savings of £386,400 from our
procurement activity through using our shared procurement consortium Advantage Southwest. We
continue to build a VfM savings target within our budget; the target for 2019/20 is to recognise
cashable savings of £140,500 through effective procurement and efficiencies.

In addition, we have challenged the business to save an extra £144,200 to cover the cost of one-off
costs unique to 2018/20; this will be achieved by recognising savings arising from staff turnover,
budget holders will be expected to manage their budgets accordingly.

Our review of support services is evidence of our commitment to VfM. Following our transformation of
customer facing services, the business has reviewed the provision of support services (HR, Finance,
IT, Facilities etc.) answering three questions:-

- Are services being delivered which customers do not use?
- Does the value of service match between the provider and customer?
- What are the additional services that could be provided?

Heads of Department are tasked with designing their services in the most efficient way, responding to
the feedback from their peers as to level and quality required.

2019/20 will be the first full year of our new service operating model, a model largely based on a
digital platform and one that was made possible by recognising £2.3m of savings. The new model
introduced a number of key changes in how we operate and interact with our customers. The
introduction of a customer Portal has supported a channel shift in how customer access services and
we are now developing a 360 digital experience which supports not just how customers access
services but how the organisation communicates and provide information. This will bring about a
digital customer journey and relationship, which starts from the point of applying for a property to the
end of the tenancy.

1l



Yarlington Housing Group
Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 March 2019

We also introduced a more proactive and targeted approach to how we manage properties and
tenancies. We have completed just under 2,000 property inspections in the last 8 months, positively
engaging with customers and tackling property condition and supporting those more complex
households to access and receive the necessary support. This approach is already having a positive
impact upon improvements to property condition, protecting our assets and importantly, sustaining
tenancies.

Performance since introducing the new model has been very encouraging with customer satisfaction
increasing from 88% in 2017/18 to 90%,by Q4 2018/19 and the % of our customers who are satisfied
that rent provides VM increasing from 84.9% to 90.3%. The full range of satisfaction measures are
listed below:-

Overall Satisfaction with YHG Services 88.2 90.0 90.0

O
Satisfaction with Home Quality 87.3 87.9 88.0
Satisfaction with Neighbourhood 85.1 87.3 85.0 O
S acta it Reyalrs 8 | 814 | 850
Satisfied rent provide VM 84.9 903 | 880 Ji)
Satisfied service charge provides ViV 75.3 79.8 75.0 @
_Satisfaction YHG listens to your views 74.0 _ 72.0 B0.0 .—
Met Promoter Score 27 38 |

We are really pleased with how our customers have received our new operating model. The one area
where we did not meet our year-end target was in respect of listening to customers views and
complaints. During the second half of 2018/19, we implemented a number of changes which are now
beginning to drive improvements. Our customer complaints process has been redesigned to instil a
collaborative ‘no blame’ culture. We want our colleagues to feel comfortable in providing advice to
customers who complain without being fearful of blame or comeback and ensure that customer
feedback helps to shape delivery of our services.

Our maintenance division was re-branded during 2018/19 as Yarlington Property Solutions, the new
brand reflects our ambition to increase bottom line profits by £1.6m over the next 3 years, enough to
build an extra 38 properties. This target will be achieved through a combination of business
efficiencies, insourcing and the sale of our services, selling our repair and maintenance services Is
planned to commence during the latter part of the 3-year plan. We are currently reviewing our
governance arrangements and financial support to ensure that YPS are able to manage the
associated inherent risks of their expansion; not least ensuring that the service to our social hausing
customers does not suffer by the desire to generate profits,

Our performance

Our Board monitors operational performance by reference to the scorecard shown overleaf. Repored
quarterly, this enables them to see a cross-section of performance data from across the business, It
Is intrinsically linked to the delivery of the NextGen strategy but also provides key day-to-day
performance data. Performance monitoring is an integral part of the corporate risk management
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strategy. A green light shows that performance is currently at or above target; amber shows there is
a slight variance from target and red shows there is a noteworthy variance from target and work is

reguired to remedy performance.

13

201819 Traffic
; T t
KPI detail zui:ré]]:g Performance Light
E % Current tenant rent arrears 2.25% 1,75% .
%)
G
£ | % Void Rent loss (exc. new development units & garages) 0.80% 0.80% .
L
Customer satisfaction with overall service (general needs
and supported housing combined) taken from Satisfaction 90% 90% .
Survey (cumulative)
Customer satisfaction with repairs and maintenance service o o
, ; 85% 84.8% _
- (the most recent repair) (cumulative) :
& T o i S
£ | Customer Satisfaction with the handling of the complaint 90% 889 O
S | (cumulative) ! :
m i e e, L —
S Number of Yarlington residents supported into employment 185 135 .
(cumulative)
% Transactions now digital (properties that have a My
Yarlington Account) *Transaction data is based on inbound 95% (by 739, .
transactions into Customer Services and 'Digital’ includes emails, year end)
My Yartington, live chat and social media.
%, Overall Planned staff turnover (cumulative) e
gl —— 0 === — 10% 10.9% O
= g? % Overall unplanned staff turnover (cumulative)
el . -
'E & | % Gross profit of Market Sales (gifted to YHG) 19% 23.4% .
oo
=
Q Number of homes built against the 1500 unit target 300 a5 O
(performance against the budgeted profile) (cumulative)
Average day_s to re-let all managed social housing dwellings 19 days 954 .
{standard voids)
[ HEan . |
ﬂ % of all repairs visits completed on tims 96% 94% .
Q e = N Sy .
O
A | Number of properties without current CP12 Certificate 0 1 .
% Capital works programme delivered to date 95% 95.7% .
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We set out below our performance against the sector VFM metrics. We compare our 2018/19
performance against the prior year and against our 2019/20 targets.

VFM metric 2017118 2018/19 2019/20 | 201718
- |target | Quartile
_ (national
Reinvestment — total investmentas a | 5.3% 5.9% 5.6% G2 :
% of existing properties _
New supply of affordable housing 1.4% 1.3% | 0.8%
| delivered ]
New supply of non-affordable housing | 0 0.2% 0
| delivered
Gearing % 35.1% 30.0% | 32.5%
Interest cover % (EBITDA-MRI) 232.0% 221.3% 142.7%
Headline cost per unit of managing £3,098 £3.178 £3,633
and maintaining affordable housing
Operating margin 32.8% 30.4% 17.8%
Operating margin — affordable housing | 39.2% 37.7% 26.2%
activity _
Return on Capital Employed 4.2% | 3.8% 2.4%

Our 2017/18 performance compared to our peers is favourable across all areas.

We show our 2019/20 target metrics, based on our 2019/20 budget. We expect interest cover,
operating margins, and ROCE to be lower and the cost per unit of managing/maintaining to increase.
This is due to an investment in fire safety works across our stock: we are working in partnership with
Devon & Somerset Fire Rescue Service to ensure our customers live in a safe and secure property.
The programme of fire safety improvements will complete in 2019/20, and financial performance will
return to levels similar to previous years.

Our new supply of affordable housing is set to decrease next year because of the longer lead-in time
associated with 2 move to a3 more land led development programme. We have also only counted the
completion of units that we are committed too, however, our Development Team have a target to
exceed this by completing additional deals with volume house builders

14
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Yarlington Housing Group
Statement of the Board on Internal Controls
Introduction

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for ensuring that the Company has established an
effective system of internal control, and for reviewing its effectiveness. The system of internal control
focuses on:-

® The significant risks that threaten the Company's ability to meet its strategic
and operational objectives and;
® The safeguarding of assets.

The Board’s aim is to ensure control mechanisms are in place to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve the Company's strategic and operational ohjectives. The process for
identifying, evaluating and managing the significant risks facing the Company is ongoing. Such a
system can only provide reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against material misstatement,
fraud or loss.

Annual Review of Effectiveness of Internal Controls

The Audit & Risk Committee received a report from the Executive Team cn the effectiveness of the
Internal Controls systems in operation during the financial year. This was reviewed at the Audit & Risk
Committee on 24th June 2019 and reported to the Board on Sth July 2018.

The review sets out the different ways in which assurance over the control system is obtained.
Forms of Assurance

Governance

The Board consists of up to ten members, all with a relevant range and depth of skills and experience.
A thorough skills analysis, and review of Board effectiveness was undertaken in January 2019, which
confirmed that the Board was operating effectively and had a good range of essential skills. This
includes allowing two Executive Directors on the Board, although there is currently only one Executive
Director on the Board. This experience on the Board provides robust review and control in the
strategy and decision making process,

The Board has a tailored training programme, including both induction training for new members and
tailored sessions for personal development and sector related issues. The Board also conducts
annual appraisals on the Board as a whole and on individual members.

The Board has an Annual Governance Action Plan — derived from the annual review of governance
and self-assessment of compliance with the adopted Code of Governance; it also sets itself annual
Key Board Deliverables, a series of key tasks or actions in order to achieve the strategic objectives;
and produces an annual governance report.

Yarlington has historically adopted the NHF Code of Governance and we can confirm that we are in
compliance with the Code of Governance for 2018-19 with the exception of one minor deviation from
the Code, The Board took a decision to extend the Chair's tenure until March 2020; the Board agreed
that the extension is in the best interests of the Association and this has also been disclosed to the
Regulator.

With effect from 1% April 2019, Yarlington took a decision to adopt a different Code of Governance,
the newly adopted Code is the UK Corporate Governance Code and compliance against the Code will
be included in the 2019-2020 financial statements.
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The Board promotes a culture of learning lessons from control failures by requiring objective analysis
of causes and measures put in place to prevent recurrence.

The Board has recently reviewed its approach to the scrutiny of YHL and has put in place a formal
Development Committee as a result.

The recent extension to the term of the Chair of the Board was fully scrutinised by the Remuneration
Committee.

Delegation by the Board

The Board has control of the activities of the whole Group, including the four subsidiary companies.
All key decisions and performance monitoring of these companies are reported to the main Board
directly — therefore all Board members are fully aware and invalved in the decision making. There are
two standing committees of the Board — Audit and Risk, and Remuneration. All have well-defined and
relatively narrow remits — again ensuring that wherever possible the whole Board is involved. There
are formally approved Standing Orders which sets out the various decisions which are delegated to
committees, Executive Team or individuals.

Corporate Planning and Strategy

We are now in year 3 of our NextGen Strategy, launched in April 2017 This Strategy has three clear
strategic objectives: to develop and implement a new service model for our customers: to significantly
increase new homes in the South West new homes; and to serve our customers in the most
economic, efficient and effective manner.

The Strategy also focuses the direction of management in implementing controls to ensure that the
objectives are met. The Board actively monitors the progress of achieving the strategic objectives,
again acting as a control in ensuring that they are met; as well as monitoring the progress of the Key
Board Deliverables.

Management

The Executive Team reflects the strategic direction and emphasis of NextGen. The Executive
Directors are responsible for the implementation of the strategic direction of the organisation:
including the delivery of the Strategy.

Executive Team, Heads of Departments and Senior Managers adopt a rigorous approach to
preparing and reviewing all proposals, reports and policies. Objective, analytical assessment is
carefully applied before taking any decision or providing confirmation. This methodology of challenge
is continued at Board level.

Health and safety

Yarlington continues to evolve and strengthen its overall approach to health and safety, placing a high
premium on continuous improvement in this area. A new senior position as been created leading on
group Health & Safety at the Senior Leadership level and this has brought positive changes to both
our activity and reporting rigour. The short-term goal of this approach is to achieve 15045001 in
relation to health and safety during the 2019/20 financial year.

During the 2018/19 financial year, we saw near miss reporting for accidents rise significantly but
actual incidents/aceident levels remain stable, demonstrating that work to create a new health &
safety culture are starting to take effect.

No RIDDOR reportable events cccurred in 2018/19.

Work rates against our fire safety programme continue and we have taken on additional contract
resource to expedite this work. Significant attention during the year has also been given to risks for
DLO operatives, focussing on asbestos risk and particulate exposure as two examples of additional
attention.
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Resident Scrutiny

Residents Scrutiny Function (known as Challenge & Change) has an annual programme of reviews of
our services to customers. The Group provides assurance that services are being delivered in line
with customer’s expectations and hold an annual Co-regulation Day to hold the Board to account in its

decision-making.

Risk Management and assurance

Our risk management framework includes various forms of assurance. Risk registers, including the
identification, evaluation of the risks and the appropriate control mechanisms are prepared on an
individual business stream basis at an operational level and are reviewed on a guarterly basis. Each
strategic project has its own strategic risk register.

The strategic risks are reviewed monthly by the Executive Team and quarterly by the Board and
include a commentary to the Board highlighting where there are specific changes or concerns.

The Audit & Risk Committee reviews the risk management processes twice yearly. The Audit & Risk
Committee also included a discussion on emerging risks that could impact on the Group at every
Audit & Risk Committee meeting.

The Board also reviews and approves our Risk Appetite Statement, which sets out the approach to
the level of risk that the Board is prepared to accept in order to achieve our strategic objectives,

The Board regularly reviews the Assets & Liabilities Register.

Performance Management

We have a suite of management information, suitable for monitoring by different levels in the
organisation. We have an automated system to produce Balanced Scorecards for the Board,
Executive Team and for individual teams. The role of a dedicated performance team supports
management in analysing this management information.

Performance information is reviewed by the Executive Team on a monthly basis and by the Board on
a quarterly basis. The clear format of the information, including a 'dashboard’ to monitor corporate
plan delivery, enables easier identification of any issues in controls and aids prompt remedial action.

Financial assurance

Any significant variances from budget are investigated as part of the regular budget monitoring
process. Robust systems of monitoring covenant performance, swap exposure and projections are
undertaken, and are reported to the Executive Team monthly and the Board quarterly.

Yarlington retained our strong A3 credit rating. This process and their judgement provides external
assurance on our financial viability, management and risk management process.

Value for Money

During the year, we have again worked extensively on our Value for Money Plan, particularly in
embedding the culture of continuous improvement. \We have done considerable analysis on the pilot
sector scorecard, and our position confirms that our services provide value for money to our
customers compared to our peers. We have successfully achieved the efficiencies set as a target
within our NextGen strategy.

External Audit
The Audit & Risk Committee receives and reviews the External Auditors' management letter, which

provides assurance that there are no material weaknesses in internal financial controls.

Fraud
The risk of fraud is always reviewed as part of the monthly risk reviews. All internal audits focus on

probity and controls to minimise the risk of fraud. We have a fraud register in which any fraud,
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whatever level or nature, is reported. There were no reported frauds during the year.

Regulators' Reports

We provide several returns to the Regulator during the year, notable the Quarterly Statistical Survey.
These have all been signed off with no issues during the year., We received confirmation of our
Governance rated 1 and Viability rated 1 (“G1/V1") following the annual stability review in November
2018.

Benchmarking

The membership of various benchmarking organisations, notably Housemark, and this year the
Global Accounts analysis — as well as more informal structures — allows us to compare our
performance against others on a range of activities. It also enables us to compare best practice in
relation to controls processes and improve where appropriate.

This provides assurance that services are being provided effectively and efficiently, and corporate
objectives are being achieved. It also helps identify areas for further investigation and improvement.

Customer Insight

We have implemented Citizen Space as our primary consultation tool with customers and this has
driven real success, with responses to consultation now being counted in the hundreds rather than
tens.

We have been careful to ensure we still provide offline consultation opportunities alongside these new
digital tools.

We remain committed to comprehensive customer surveying around satisfaction and opinions about
our service provisions as a landlord, with every household receiving a survey annually. Our customer
satisfaction levels were high despite significant changes to our operating model (90% customer
satisfaction at year end).

Challenge and Change committee provides customers with an opportunity to scrutinise our work and
a positive open dialogue exists between the Yarlington board and members of Challenge and
Change,

Policies and Procedures

Formal policies and procedures are in place, including financial regulations and standing orders
relating to the delegation of authorities, which allow the monitoring of controls and restrict the
unauthorised use of the Company’s assets. We have a Scheme of Delegation which clearly sets out
where responsibility for approval lies; this was reviewed and updated during the year.

Internal Audit

YHG has a dedicated in-house internal audit function. The internal audit programme is risk based and
focuses on controls that mitigate key risks. Our internal audit service is supplemented by the use of
external internal auditors during the year to provide specialist expertise.

Formal procedures are established for instituting appropriate action to correct weaknesses identified
from the above reports, and the Audit & Risk Committee receives details of all follow-up audits, which
monitor management's action to correct weaknesses. Prompt action is taken and reported where any
potential significant weakness is identified.

The Executive Team review and approve all internal audit reports and the findings and
recommendations for improvement are reported to Audit & Risk Committee. An annual internal audit
report is produced and reported to the Audit & Risk Committee. In turn, the Audit & Risk Committee
provides an annual report to the Board. No major weaknesses in control were identified during the
year.
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Conclusion
On behalf of the Board, the Audit & Risk Committee has reviewed the effectiveness of the system of

internal control, which has been in existence for the year ended 31 March 2019, and up to the date of
approval of the financial statements. No weaknesses were found in internal contrals, which resulted
in material losses, contingencies, or uncertainties, which require disclosure in the financial
statements, or in the auditors’ report on the financial statements.

By Order of the Board

Board Member

Date:
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Statement of the Board’s Responsibilities

The board is responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.

The Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014 and registered social housing legislation require
the board to prepare financial statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Registered Social Landlord (RSL) and of the surplus or deficit for that period. In preparing these
financial statements, the board is required to:

* select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

= make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

¢ state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

* prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that
the RSL will continue in business,

The board is responsible for keeping proper accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
R5L's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the RSL and to
enable it to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Go-operative and Community Benefit Societies
Act 2014 and Regulations thereunder, the Housing and Regeneration Act 2008 and the Accounting Direction for
Private Registered Providers of Social Housing 2015. It is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
R5L and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities,

The board is responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the society's website. Legislation in the Unitad
Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other
jurisdictions.

(quu'\
Signed: Date: 4™ September 2019

Director
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Yarlington
Housing Group

Report on the audit of the financial statemenis

Opinion
In our opinion, Yarlington Housing Group’s group financisl statements and company financial statements (the “linaneial
statements™}:

iive i leue and Tair view of the state of the group’s and of the company’s allaivs as al 31 March 2o1g and of the group’s and
the company's surplus snd the group’s cash flows for the vear then ended;

have boen properly prepared in accordanees with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice {United
Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 102 "The Finaneial Beporting Standard applicable in the UK and
Lepublic of Treland”, and applicable law); and

have been prepared in aceordance with the requirements of the Companies Acl 2006 and, as regavds the group financial
statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation.

We have audited the [naneial statements, included within the Annoal Beport and Financial Statements (the “Annual Beport™),
which comprize: the statements of linancial position as 1t 31 Marcch 2019; the stalements of comprehensive income, the
consolidated and society statements of changes in reserves, the consolidated staternent of cash flows, note 1 to the conselidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and the notes to the financial statements, which include a description of the
gignificant accounting palicics.

O opinion is consistent with our reporting to the Audit Committee.

Basis for opinion

We comdueted our andit in accordance with International Standards on Anditing (UK} ("I5As (LK) and apphicable law. Ouar
responsibilities under ISAs (UKD are [urther described in the Auditors’ responsibilitics for the andit of the finaneial statenents
seclion of vur report, We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sullicient and appropriate Lo provide a basis lor our
apiniom.

Independence

We remained independent of the group o accordanee with the ethics] requirements that ace relevant Lo our andit of the
financial statements in the UK, which includes the FRC's Bthical Standard, as applicable to listed public interest entities, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requircments.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, we declare that non-audit services prohibited by the FRC's Ethical Standard were nol
provided to the group or the company.

Other than those disclosed in note 4 W the Gonapeial statements, we have provided noe non-audil services to the group or the
company in the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 March 201g.

Qur audit approach
Context

The Group is a nol for profil registered social landlord with the fundamental objeetive to provide housing, with all smpluses
reinvested in the Group Lo improve the provision of secvice o their lenanls.
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Ouverview

Overall gronp materiality: £5.708 million (2018: L5448 million), based on 1% of total assets.
Owerall comparny materiality: £5.508 million (2018: £5.166 million), based on 1% of tolal assets.

The group comprises the society and four trading entities in addition to one joint venture cutity,

We conducted a full seope andit of the society and of the four trading entities and the joint
venture, this eneompasses all entities within the gronp,

Muoterinlity

Risk of fraud in vevenue recognilion (Group and parent).

Aueedid i .
ik Accounting for defined benefit pension schemes (Parent).
Valuation of market vent properlies (Group).
Risl of frand in expendilurs recognition (Gronp and parent),
Key audit
matters

The scope af our audil

As parl of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the visks of malerial misstatement in the financial
slatements. In particnlar, we looked al where the directors made subjeelive judpements, for example in respect of sipnificant
secounting estimates thal involved making assumpHons and considering future events that arc inherently uneertain.

Capability of the audit in detecting irregularities, including fraud

Based un vur understanding of the group and industry, we identified that the principal risks of non-compliance with Taws and
regulations related to the Co-operative and Community Henefit Socielies Act 2014, the Co-operative and Communily Benefit
Societies (Group Accounts) Regulations 1969, the Housing and Regeneration Act 2008 and the Accounling Direction for Private
Registered Providers of Social Housing from April 2015, and we considered the extent Lo which non-compliance might have a
material eflect on the financial statements. We also considered those laws and regulations that have a direct impact on the
preparation of the financial statements such as the Companies Act 2006, We evaluated management's incentives and
opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the finaneial statements (including the risk of override of controls), and
determined (hal the principal rislks were volated (o posling inappropriate journal entries Lo decresse revenue or increaso
expendilure, and management hias in accounting estimates. The gronp engagement leam shared this sk assessment with the
component auditors so that they could include appropriate andit procedures in response to such risks in their work, Audit
procedures performed by the proup engagement team and/or component auditors included:

review of the financial statement disclosures W underlying supporting documentation;
review of correspondence with the regulators;

review of correspondence with legal advisors;

crquiries of mansgement; and

review of internal andit reports in so far as they related to the financial slatements

There are inherent limitations in the andit procedures deseribed ahove and the forther removed non-complianes with Taws and
repulations is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely we wonld boeome aware of it.
Also, the tisk of not detecting a malerial misstatement due to frand is higher than the risk of not defecting one res ulting from
error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forpery or intentional misvepresentalions, or through
collnsion,

Key audit matters

Eey audit matters are those matters thal, in the auditors’ professional judpement, were of most significance in the audit of the
financial stateinents of the current period and include the most significant assessed tisks of material inisstatement (whether or
not duc to lraud) identified by the anditors, imcluding those which had the greatest effeel on: the overall audit strategy: the
allocation ol resvurces in the andit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team. These matters, and any comments we
ke on the results of onr pracedures thereon, were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereos, and we do not provide a separale opinion on these matters. This s not a complete list of all
rigks identificd by our audit.

Key audit matter How our audil addressed the key oudit matier

Risk of fraud it revenue recognilion We evaluated and tested the acoonnting policies [or revenue
recognition against the requirciments of FRS 102 and the
Statement of Hecommended Practive "Accounting by
Registered Social Landlords" updated in 2014 (SORF).

We traced a sample of properties on the hovsing manspement

See note 1 o the finoaneiol statemeants for the group's and
sociely's disclosures of significant accounting policies
reluling to the recognition of revenue, and note 2 for further
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Key auwdit matter

ITow our audit addressed the key auedit matter

imformeation.
The three main sourees of revenue for the group are rental and

serviee cliarge income, income [rom property sales, and olher
INCOmeE.

W foenzed on these areas becanse there is a heighitened risk
as [ollows:

- rental and service charge income - the proup recognised
Equ,8usk for the year ended 31 March 2019, The housing
management system is used by the group to record and Lrack
properties aud lenancies, which are then reeorded through
journal entries on the geneval ledger. There [s a visk of revenue
from a valid property or lenancy heing amended or removed
[rom the housing management systom incorrectly resulling in
a transaction reeovded being missed [rom the general ledger.
There is also a risk of the application of insecurale rent or rent
wecls during the financial year, 'This consideration applics to
social, market and commercial rental income as well as serviee
charge income,

- ineome from properly salcs - the group recopoised £5,4:21k
for the vear ended 31 March 2019, There is a risk of the
recopnilion of property sales being recorded in the incorrect
period around year-end to meet certain property sales and
revenue targets,

- other income - the group recognised £8,113% for the year
ended 51 March 2o1g, This includes other management tees,
grant amortisation, charges for support serviee, gain on
disposal of property, plaul and cquipment, and other income.
The recognition of other income presents a risk as revenuc
may be deferred into the next year once the likely year-end
position is known Lo be in line with expectation for the group.

Group and parent

syslem to the housing munagement system to the rent system
to ensure Lthat rental income s complete.

We traced a sample of properties to land regjstry support to
validate that ownership of the asset for which revenne has
been recorded,

We performed data analytics over rental and servies charge
income to test the completeness and accuracy of the amonnts
charped por the housing management system. We lested the
reconciliation between the general ledger and the housing
management system, We sampled properties from the rental
sysbem which the data aualytics identified as having
unexpeeted revenue amounts recorded o check that the
recorded rentals were appropriate and not indicative of any
misstatement,

Tncome rom the sale of propettics and property, plant and
equipment was tested by tracing sampled transactions Lo
invoices, coulracts or completion statements and cash
received to determine that the sale was recognised in the
correct period.

Other income was tested by tracing sampled fransactions to
underlying records, which eomprised invoices and other third
parly supporting documentation, to determine whether the
revenie was recognised in the correet period.

Mo material exceplions were noted from our testing.

Accounting for defined benefit pension schemes

See note 1 and note 21 to the financial statements for the
gqroup's disclosures of the aceounting policies and
assumiptions used for its defined henefit pension schemes,

The Group is a member of the Svmersct Connty Council
defined benelit pension scheme.

The gronp's share of assets and Habilities from the schemes
are recognised in the financial statements to show the nel
pension position of the scheme. There are net pension
liahilities of Ca5.2m (2018: E46.5m) on this scheme,

The valuation of the defined benelit pension schemes requires
the use of several actuarial assumptions. There is a risk that an
incorrect actuarial assumphon may be used, small differences
in the assumptions applicd can have a significant impact on
the liahility caleulated.

The key actuarial assumptions are the discount rate,
demographics, inflation, salary increases, pension ncreases
and aszet returns,

Group and Parvent

We used vur internal pension experts Lo assess the key
actnarial assumplions such as discount rale, demographics,
inflation, salary increases and pension increases, The actuarial
azswnptions nsed fall within our expected ranges.

We confirmed management's actuary is appropriately
gualified and independent to complete the valuation.

We read the diselosures of the group to check the disclosure of
the group's defined henefit pension schemes and that they are
compliant with FES 102,

We Leaced a sample of plan contributions and census Lesting to
supporting evidenes and paymenl,

Mo material exceplions were noted from our testing,

Valuation of mariet rent properiies

See nofe 1 Lo the financial statements Jor the group's
disclasures of the accounting policies, fudgenents and
estirnates, relating fo the fuir value of imsestment properties
and note 15 for further informualion.

Yarlington Hoemes Limited holds a number of market rent
properties at fair value, 1548 (UK) 500 and 540 requires us,
respectively, to undertake cerlain procedures on the use of
external cxperts where they are used, and on the provesses
and assumplions underlying their calenlations,

‘These investment propertics held in the Group are revalued

We tested the valuations of the market vent properties by
comparing the valuation movements Lo curtent market
aclivity. We confirmed the valoation methodology and
assumplions was appropriate with our own internal valuation
experts.

wWe agreed the underlying hase data used by the valner to
underlying property records to ensure the source data used
was complete and accurate,

We traced 1 sample of properties to land registry information
to validate the existence and ownership of the properties.

We confirmed the valuers held the experience and
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Key audit matter How vur audil addressed the key audit matter

annually by an external valuers in aceordance with the Eoyal  gualifications to complete the valualions hy confirming the
Institute of Chartered Swveyors Valuation Standards. qualifications they hold.

The valuation of these properties requires the use of several Mo malerial exceptions were noted from our testing,
assumplions and professional judgement. There is g risk that

an incorrect assumption may be used, small differences in the

assumptions applied can have a significant impact on the

property valuation caleulated.

Group

Risk of frmid in expenditire recognition We obtained an understanding of the key expenditure
See nole 1 lo the financial statements for the group's and controls.

soclely's disclosures of significant accounting policies We performed substantive testing over the vear cnd cost
reluting to the recognition of revenue, and note 2 for firther  aceruals and completed testing over the classificalion of
nformation, expenditure between capital and revenue expenditure to a

This is considered Lo be an area in which management could  Digh level of assurance Lo ensure that there were caleulated

potentially manipulate results for the year and Lo ensure that ~ 8ccurately and are complete.
loan covenanls are not hreached, o material exceptions wore noted from our lesting,

One of the most significant pressures oo the business is the
need Lo malke ongolug cost savings. With the largest income
stream for the proup being predictable and repular, there i3
greater fraud opportumity with regards to Luw expenses are
aceounts fur and we therefore focussed on the acenracy of cost
acertals processed in the ledgers and ensured that our
journals work reviewed the appropriateness of any significant
credits to expenditure.

We consider the main risk to be that inaintenance cosls could
be inappropriate classified as capital expenditure, and that
year-end expendilure acorals are incomplete,

Group and parent

How we tatlored the audit scope

We tailored the scope of vur audit to ensure that we perlormed en ough work to be able Lo give an opinion on the financial
stalements as a whole, taking into account the structure of the group and the company, the accounting processes and controls,
aud the industry in which they operate.

We tailored the scope of vur andit to ensure that we performed enon el work to be able to give an opinion on the financial
slalements as a whole, taking into account the structure of the group and the socicly, the aceounting processes and coulrols, and
the industry in which they aperate.

The group comprises the society and four wholly-owned trading entitics along with one juint venture entily. We scoped all
wholly-owned trading entities for proup reportiug purpases heeause they all required individual statutory audits,

Forthe joint venture we completed a full scope andit,
The full seope andits by the group and component team covered 100% of group revenue and 100% of group total assets,

Materiality

"The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. We set cortain yuantitative thresholds for materiality.
These, together with qualitative considerations, helped us to deterimine the seope of our audit and the nature, timing and extent
of vur audit procedures on the individual financial statement line items and disclosures and in evaluating the offeel of
misstatements, both individually and in aggregate on the uancial statements as a whale,

Based on owr professivnal judzement, we determined materiality for the financial stalements as a whole as follows:
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Group financial slatements

Compuany financial statemenls

Overall materiality

Hmwe we determined it

Rationoale for
benchmark applied

L5708 million (2018: £5.438 million).
1% of total assels.

Based on the benchmark used in the Annual

Report, total assets is a key measure used by
the dircetors in assessing the perlormance of
the group, and is a generally accepted audiling,
henchmarl. This benchunark is used by the
directors to measure and compare the
undedying impact and performance of the
group. The Group is a not-for-profit entity with
any surplus made reinvesled in the Group to
provide further assets. The benchmark applied
is consistent with the prior year, As relerenced

Based on the henehmarks used in the Annal

£5.508 million (208: L5166 million).

1% of total assots.

Report, tolal assets is a key measure used by
the directors in assessing the performance of
the group, and is a generally aceepted auditing
benchmmark, This henchmark is used by the
directors to measure and compare the
underlying impact and performance of the
gromp, The Group is o nol-lor-profit entity with
any surplus reinvested in the Group Lo provide
further assels. The benchmark applied is
different from the prior vear, As referenced in

the Context section of our audit approach for
significant and elevated risks we applicd a
specitic revenue based henchmark,

in the Conlext seetion of our audit approach for
significant and elevaled risks we apphied a
specific roverme based benchmark,

For each component in the seope of our group audit, we allocated a materiality that is less than our overall group materiality.
The range of materiality allocated seross components was between £3,382 and £5,507,966. Certain components were audited to
a local statutory audil materiality that was also less than our overall group materiality.,

We apreed with the Audit Committee that we wonld report to them misstatements identified during our audit above £31,965
{(Group audit) (z018; £28 500) and £29,550 (Company audit) (2018: £26,828) as well as misstatements bLelow those amounts
that, in our view, warranted reporting for qualitative veasons.

Conclusions relating to going concern
945 (LK) require us to report to you when:

the directors’ use of the gning coneern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not appropriate;
or

the directors have nat disclosed in the [inancial statements any identified material uncertainties thal may cast significant
doubl about the group’s and company’s abilily to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period
of at least twelve months from the date when the finaneial statements are authorised for issue,

We have nothing te report in respect of the above matters,

However, hecause not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement is not a guarantee as to the group’s and
company’s ability to continue us a going coneern, lior example, the terms on which the United Kingdom may withdraw from the
European Union ave not elear, and it is difficult to evaluate all of the potential implications on the group's Lrade, customers,
suppliers and the wider economy,

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Eeport other than the financial statements and our
auditors’ report thernon. The directors are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the linancial statements does
not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not cxpress an audit opinion or, except to the extent olherwise explicitly
stated in this report, any forin of assurance therson.

In conneclion with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibilily is to read the other information and, in doing sa,
consider whether the other information is materially incomsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit, or otherwise appears to he materially misstaled. 1f we identify an apparent material inconsistency or malerial
yisstatement, we are required to perform procedures to conclude whether there is a malerial misstatement of the finanelal
slalements or a material misstatement of the other information. IL based on the work we have perfonined, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report based
on these responsibilitics,

Wilh respect to the Strategic Report, Directors’ Report and Corporale Governance Statement, we also considered whether the
diselosures required by the UK Companies Act 2oo6 have been included,

Based on the responsibilities described above and our worl undertaken in the course of the wudit, I8As (UK) require us also to
repurl eertain opinions and matters as deseribed helow.

Strategic Report and Directors’ Report

In our opinion, based on the work indertaken in the course of the andit, the information given in the Strategic Report and
Directars' Report for the year ended 31 March 2019 is consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in
accordancs with applicable legal requirements,
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In Tight of the knowledge and understanding of the group and company and their cnviconment obtained in te course of the
audil, we did not identily any material misstatements in the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report,

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit
Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of the Board's Responsibilities set out on page 20, Lhe directors ave responsible for the
prepavation of the financial slatements in aceordance with the applicable framework and for being satisficd that they give a true
and fair view. The directors are also responsible for such internal control as they determine is nocessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessi ng the group’s and the company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicahle, matters related to going convern and using the poing concern basis of
avcounting unless the directors cither intend to liquidate the group or the eompany or to coase operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our ohjectives are to obtain reasensble assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or ervor, and Lo issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion, Reasonable assuranee is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantes that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs {UK) will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists, Misslatements can arise from frand or orror and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the hasis of these
finanecial stalements.

A [urther description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on (he FRC's wehsite at:
www.fre.ovg uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors’ TepoTt,

Use aof this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for aud only for the company’s members as a body in accordanee with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, acecpl or assume
respanaibility [or any other purposs or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save
where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing,

Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you it, in our opinion:
we have not received all the information and explanations we reguire for our audil; or

adequate accounting reeords Liave not been kept by the company, or relurns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; ar

certain disclosures of diveetors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
the company financial statements are nol in agreement with the decounting records and returns,

We have no exceplions to report arising from this responsibility.

Appointment

Following the recommendation of the audit commilles, we were appointed by the divectors on 31 March 2014 to audit the
finaneial statements for the year ended 31 March 2014 and subs equent financial periods. The period of total uninterrapted
eupagement is 6 years, covering the years ended 31 Mareh 2014 to 31 March 2o1g.

fo oo

Lynn Pamment (Senior Stalutory Auaditor)

[or and on hehalf of PricewaterhonseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accounlants and Statutory Auditors
Bristal

£ September 2019
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Statements of Comprehensive Income for the year ended 31 March 2019

Turnover

Cost of Sales

Operating expendifura

Gain on disposal of praperty, plant and
equipment (tangible assats)
Operating surplus

Share of operating surplus/{deficit) in joint
venture

Interest receivable

Interest payable and financing costs
Increase in valuation of

investmeant propetties

Surplus before tax

Taxation

Gift Ald from subsidiaries

Other comprehensive income/{expense).
Surplus for the year after tax

Actuarial gain/(loss) in respect of pension
schemes

Release from the revaluation reserve
Changes in fair value of hedged financial
instruments

Total comprehensive income for the year

Year ended Year ended
31 Mar 2019 31 Mar 2018
Group Society Group Sociely
£000 £°000 £000 £:000
Motes

2(a) 63,929 59,026 56,573 56,500

2(a) (8,134) (4,631) (2,557) (2,556)

2(a) (36,792) (36,429) (35,591} (35,424)

5 2,852 2,808 3,808 3,800
2(a) 21,855 20,774 22,233 22320

5 - (1) -

245 256 95 155

6 (7,924) (7,933) (7,566) (7,544)

(121) (121) 64 64

14,059 12,976 14,825 14,995

7 6 5 (6) (5)

- 2?‘ - =

14,065 13,008 14,819 14,990

21 1,731 1,731 4,445 4,445

1,211 1,211 1,218 1,218

8 {249) (249) 881 881

16,758 15,701 21,363 21,534

The financial statements oh pages 27 to 65 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board on 4" September

2019 and were signed on its behalf by:

hd

W-E.l-y'ne Morris

Board Member:

Gamling;i%ej/\

Company Secretary:

GHVAR

Gemma Burton-Gonnolly

The consolidation and society results relate wholly to continuing activities and the notes on pages 33 to 65
form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statements of Financial Position as at 31 March 2019

As at As at
31 Mar 2019 31 Mar 2018
Motes Group Society Group Society
£'000 £°000 £'000 £000
Fixed assets
Intangible assets 11 219 218 283 285
Tangible fixed assets 12 499,586 504,801 486,829 491,058
Investment properties 13 9,900 9,900 9,052 9,052
Investment in subsidiaries - 6,013 - 6,012
Investment in joint ventures W . _— 106 -
509,816 520,932 497 170 508,247
Stock 14 11,847 5,284 10,133 3,068
Debtors: falling due within one year 15 6,536 6,546 4,329 5,674
Investments 16 75 75 75 5
Cash and cash equivalents 1w 50972 50,963 32,128 32,087
69,430 62,668 46,665 40,914
Less: creditors: amounts falling due 18{a)
within one year (16,365) {37,121) (22418)  (23,279)
Net current assets 53,065 25,747 24249 17,635
Total assets less current liabilities 562,881 546,679 521,419 525,882
Creditors: amounts falling due after 18(b) {289,325) (269,200) (261,867) (261,169
mare than one year
Financial derivatives 20 (8,152) (8,152) {7,904) (7.904)
Provisions for liabilities
Pension liability 21 (35,232) (35,232) (36.,447) (36,447)
Other provisions -
Total net assets 230,172 234,095 215,401 220,362
Reserves ==
Income and expenditure reserve 98,562 102,649 81,434 86,578
Revaluation reserve 139,762 139,598 141,871 141 688
Cash flow hedge reserve {8,152} (8,152) _  (7,904) (7,504}
Total reserves _ 230,172 234,095 215,401 220,362

The financial statements on pages 27 to 685 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board on
4" September 2019 and were signed on its behalf by;

Board Board Member: Company Secretary:
Wayne Morris Caroline Moore Gemma Burton-Connally

The notes on pages 33 to 65 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Yarlington Housing Group is a charitable Community Benefit Seciety registered with the Financial Conduct Authority
(Registered in England, Registration Number 7499). Yarlington Housing Group is registered with the Regulator of
Social Housing (Registration Number LH4200), The Registered office is Yarlington Housing Group, Lupin Way,
Yeovil, Somerset, BAZZ 8VN.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2019

MNotes 2019 2018
£000 £°000
Net Cash generated from operating activities 1 24,052 24,8907
Cash Flow from investing activities
Purchase of Intangible fixed assets 11 (118) (74)
Purchase of tangible fixed assets (22,077) (18,575)
Write down of fixed asset investment - -
Purchase of fixed asset investments (184) -
Proceeds from sale of tangible fixed assets 3] 5,401 7.163
Share of sale of Housing Properties to SSDC {1,404) (066)
Interest received 245 117
Met cash used in investing activities {18,137) {12,335)
Cash flow from financing activities
Interest paid {7,282) (6,810)
Mew loans 19,523 21,384
Repayment of other loans {1,175} (7,310)
Receipt of SHG 2,448 279
Grants utilised in the year (583) (545)
Net cash generated fromf(used in) financing activities 12,929 7,008
Met Increase in cash and cash equivalents 18,844 19,580
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 32,128 12,548
Cash and cash eguivalents at end of the year 17 50,972 32,128
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Maote 1 Notes 2019 2018
E£°000 £000
Cash flow from operating activities
Surplus for the year 14,060 14,825
Adjustments:
Depreciation of fixed assets 12a 7.221 6,850
Amaortisation of intangible assets 11 186 270
Impairment of fixed assets 4 - -
{Increase) in stock {1,713} (1,869}
(Increase) in trade or other debtors (1,114) (104)
Increase in trade or other creditors 698 564
Movement in fair value of financial instruments - =
Pension costs less contributions payable 516 1,885
Carrying amount of tangible fixed asset disposals 2,302 2,921
Proceeds from sale of tangible fixed assets b {5,401) {7,163)
Decrease/(Increase) in valuation of investment properties 13 121 {64)
Share of {surplus)/deficit in joint ventura (5) 1
Taxation 7 K -
Interest payable 7,025 6,497
Interest recejved {245) {95)
Other non-cash items 401 279

Met Cash generated from operating activities 24,052 24,907
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

Legal Status

Yarlington Housing Group is a charitable Community Benefit Society registered with the Financial Conduct Authority
(Registered in England, Registration Number 7498). It is registered as a Registered Provider with the Regulator of
Social Housing (RSH) and is affiliated to the National Housing Federation.

The group comprises the following entities:

MName Incorporation Registered/Non-registered
Yarlington Housing Group Co-Operative and Registered
Community Benefit
Societies Act 2014
Yarlington Treasury Services Companies Act 2006 Mon-registered
Yarlington Homes Ltd Companies Act 2006 Mon-registered
Yarlington Property Management Ltd Companies Act 2006 Maon-registered
Inspired to Achieve Lid Companies Act 2006 Mon-registered
Advantage South West LLP Limited Liability Act 2000 Mon-registerad
1. Principal Accounting Policies

Statement of Compliance

The Board is responsible for preparing the Annual report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations. The Co-Operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014 and registered
social housing legislation require the Board to prepare financial statements for each financial year which give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group. The financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with applicable Accounting Standards in the United Kingdom, including Financial
Reporting Standard 102, ‘The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and the
Republic of Ireland’ (FRS 102). The financial statements comply with Schedule 1 of the Housing Act 2004, the
Accounting Direction for Private Registered Providers of Social Housing 2015 and the Statement of
Recommended Practice ('SORP 2014") published by the National Housing Federation ('NHF') in 2014,

Basis of Preparation
These consolidated and separate financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, under the
historical cost convention, except as modified by the recognition of certain financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair valus

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates, It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group and Society accounting
poficies consistently.

Group Consolidation

The Group is required to prepare consolidated financial statements under the Co-Operative and Community
Benefit Societies Act 2014 incorporating the financial statements of the society and its subsidiaries,

Intra-group transactions have been eliminated on consolidation.
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Basis of Consolidation
The Group consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Society and all of its
subsidiary undertakings together with the Group's share of the results of associates made up to 31 March.

A subsidiary is an entity controlled by the Group. Control is the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

Yarlington Housing Group has four wholly owned subsidiaries.

A joint venture is an undertaking in which the Group has a long-term interest and over which it exercises joint
control. The Group's share of the profits less losses of associates and of joint ventures is included in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income and its interest in their net assets, is included in investments
in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Operating Surplus

Yarlington Housing Group has chosen to show operating surplus on the face of the statement of
comprehensive income. This figure represents income, less the costs and expenses incurred to generate it,
from the group's principal revenue producing activities and other activities that are not investing or financing
activities,

Turnover
Turnover represents:

Rental, service charge income and garage lettings - recognised from the point at which the properties under
development reach practical completion or otherwise become available for letting.

Revenue fees and grants from local authorities and Homes England - recognised in income over the period
the related costs are incurred.

Asset related fees and grants from local authorities Homes England - recognised in income over the life of the
related asset.

Income from first tranche sales of Shared Ownership and housing properties developed for sale - recognised
at the legal completion of the sale,

Other income, such as domiciliary care and meal sales - recognised when the income falls due as a result of
performing a service or otherwise mesting the requirements of any arrangement with a third party.

Value Added Tax (VAT)

The Group’s main income stream, being social rent, is exemnpt far VAT purposes. The majority of expenditure
is subject to VAT, which the Group is unable to reclaim — this expenditure is therefore shown inclusive of VAT,
VAT can be reclaimed under the partial exemption method for certain other activities and this is credited to the
Income and Expenditure Account.

Right to Buy
Proceeds from the sale of dwellings, under the Preserved Right to Buy (PRTB) arrangements are received by
YHG in the first instance.

YHG is entitled to retain a share of these proceeds in accordance with the terms of the Right to Buy Claw back
agreement between YHG and South Somerset District Council (SSDC). YHG pay the balance to SSDC by no
later than 30 April immediately following the end of each financial year, at the year end this sum is included
within creditors.

The surplus or deficit on disposal of housing properties under the right to buy arrangement is calculated as
being the difference between the proceeds of sale of a property and the carrying value of that property. The
gain or loss on disposal is recognised in the surplus or deficit for the pefiod at the date of transfer after
adjusting for S5DC's share of the receipts,
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Right to Acdquire

The surplus or deficit on the disposal of housing properfies under the Right to Acguire arrangement is
calculated as being the difference between the proceeds of sale of a property and the carrying value of that
property. Any loss on disposal is recognised in the deficit for the period at the date of transfer, any gain on
disposal less allowable deductions is credited to the disposal proceeds fund to be recycled or repaid to Homes
England if not used within the specified time period.

Shared Ownership Properties

The cost of developing Shared Ownership properties is split between current assefs for that part of the
praperty which is expected to be sold by way of a first tranche sale and property, plant and equipment for the
remaining part of the property which is expected to be retained.

First tranche sales on Shared Ownership properties are recognised in turnover, with an appropriate proportion
of development build costs being expensed through cost of sales.

Subsequent tranches sold (‘staircasing') are reflected in the surplus or deficit on sale of property, plant and
equipment. Such staircasing sales may result in social housing grant being deferred or abated until it can be
recycled or repaid. Cost includes the acquisition of land and buildings, the cost of developing properties,
interest costs and staff time directly attributed to the development of the property.

Gift Aid

Subsidiary companies within the Group can donate any excess profits in the form of Gift Aid to the parent
Group (YHG). These donations can only be made if the subsidiary company has positive reserves and is
making a profit for the financial year in question. If these criteria are met, gift aid donations are made, subject
to approval of the subsidiary company's Board. Gift aid is eliminated an consolidation of the Group's financial
statements.

Taxation
Yarlington Housing Group is a charitable community benefit society and therefore not liable to Corporation Tax
on its charitable activities. The three subsidiary companies are liable to Corporation Tax.

The charge for taxation is based on the profitfloss for the year and takes into account taxation deferred
because of timing differences between the treatment of certain items for taxation and accounting,

Social Housing Properties and Depreciation

Properties rented for Social Benefit are classified as Property, Plant and Equipment (tangible assets) and
referred to as Social Housing. These properties are rented at below market rate to people put forward by the
relevant local authorities from their housing lists. Social housing properties under construction are stated at
cost and are not depreciated. These are reclassified as social housing properties on practical completion of
construction with cost apportioned by key companents.

Freehold land is not depreciated. The Group depreciates freehold properties by component on a straight line
hasis over the estimated useful economic lives of the component categories.

Social housing properties are split between the structure and those major components which require periodic
replacement. Capitalised major components are depreciated over the following useful economic lives (UEL):

Component UEL

Structure (existing properties) 100 years

Structure (new build properties) 126 years

Roof 60 years

Kitchens 15 or 20 years depending on type installed
Bathrooms 30 years

Heating Systems 20 years

Boilers 15 years

Windows 30 years

Wiring 30 years
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Ceilings 40 years
External wall insulation 40 years

Impairment reviews are carriad out at each reporting date. If impairment is present the asset's carrying value is
reduced to its amended value in use amount, as outlined in the impairment policy.

The Group depreciates social housing properties held on long leases in the same manner as freehold
properties, except where the unexpired |ease term is shorter than the longest component life envisaged, in
which case the unexpired term of the lease is adopted as the useful economic life of the relevant component
category.

Shared Ownership properties are split proportionately between property, plant and equipment and current
assels based on the proportion of the share of equity sold in the first tranche. The element of a property
anticipated to be sold as a first tranche sale is recognised as a current asset, whereas the element relating to
second and subsequent tranche sales is treated as properly, plant and equipment. Depreciation on freehold
properties and long leasehold social housing properties is provided to write off the cost less the estimated
residual value of social housing properties by equal instalments over their remaining estimated useful
economic life (UEL). Freehold land is not depreciated.

New build properties are developed by our subsidiary Yarlington Homes Ltd {(YHL} and sold to Yarlingtan
Housing Group (YHG) at cost plus 4%, The intra-group profit is eliminated on consolidation, which reduces
the cost of tangible fixed assets in the group compared to that of the society.

Donated Land

Land donated by local authorities and others is added to cost of the development scheme at the market value
of the land at the time of the donation. The market value is recognised as a government grant if the land is
donated by a local authority and accounted for using the accruals method. If the land is donated by a non-
government party the market value is recognised as income in the surplus or deficit for the period,

Tangible Fixed Assets and Depreciation, Non-social Housing

Property, plant and equipment, is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Cost includes the original
purchase price of the asset and the costs incurred in bringing the asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended, Subsequent expenditure is capitalised
where it increases the value of the asset or extends its life. Completed social housing properties are covered
by a separate policy. Depreciation is charged on a straight line basis over the expected remaining economic
useful lives of the assets as follows:

UEL

Freshold offices 50 years
Electrical wiring (offices) 30 years
Mechanical ventilation services (offices) 15 years
Fire and security systems (offices) 10 years
Short leasehold property Over life of lease
Community alarm equipment 10 years
Furniture, fixtures and fittings 5 years
Computer hardware 3 years
Computer software 4 years
Photovoltaic panels 25 years

With regard to freehold premises {non-social housing properties) depreciation is provided to write off the cost
less estimated residual value over the useful economic life of the property and any additions and
improvements are depreciated over the remaining life of the premises

Assets under construction are stated at cost {as defined abave). They are presented separately in the note to
the financial statements and not depreciated until they are completed and brought into use. The useful
economic lives of all property, plant and equipment is reviewead annually.
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Website Development Costs

The Group has a website, which is used to promote the Group’s aclivities. Design and content development
costs are capitalised to the extent that they deliver demonstrable benefits to the Group and are depreciated
over 5 years. On-going costs of maintaining and operating the website are charged as other operating costs
are incurred.

Capitalisation of Internal Staff Costs
Housing development schames

Internal staff costs that are directly related to the development of housing assets are capitalised to the
schemes under construction where the outcome of the scheme is certain. Where the outcome of the
scheme is uncertain or aborted, the direct development administration costs are charged to the surplus or
deficit for the period.

Development of internally created assels

Internal staffing costs relating to internally created other tangible or intangible assets are capitalised to
the extent that they are additional costs incurred due to the development of the asset.

An internally generated intangible asset is only recognised if all the following conditions are met

s The asset created can be identified (such as software or a website)
= Itis possible that the asset created will generate future economic benefits; and
s The development cost of the asset can be measured reliably

Internally generated intangible assets are recognised at cost and amortised on a straight-line basis over the
useful lives fram the date the asset becomes usable. Software costs, including staff time to develop software,
are amartised over 4 years.

Capitalisation of Interest Costs

Interest costs relating to the construction and acquisition of housing assets are charged to the cost of the
development scheme, over the period of its development. The amount capitalised represents interest costs
incurred specifically for financing the development programme after the deduction of Social Housing Grant in
advance,

Leased Assets

Where assets are financed by leasing agreements that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership, they are treated as if they had been purchased outright. The amount capitalised is the lower of the
present value of the minimum lease payments payable during the lease term or the fair value of the leased
asset. The corresponding leasing commitments are shown as the present value of the obligations to the
lessor, Lease payments are treated as consisting of a finance charge and a reduction in the liability. The
finance charge is charged to surplus or deficit for the period using the effective interest method.

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the surplus or deficit for the period on a straight line basis
over the period of the lease.

Investment Properties

Investment properties are properties held for capital appreciation, rental at a market rate where there are no
restrictions on who can be a tenant, or both. Investment properties are re-valued each year to their fair or
market value, Any changes in value are recognised in the surplus or deficit for the period when they occur.

Stocks
Genaral invenforios

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value, after making allowances for any obsolete
andlor slow moving items. Net realisable value is the price which inventories can be sold for in the normal
course of business after allowing for the costs of realisation. Inventories are valued using a first-in-first-out
methodology.

Properties developed for markel sale
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Properties that have been developed for market sale are recognised at cost less cost to sell. Cost COMprises
materials, direct labour, direct developrment overheads and attributable interest, Sales proceeds are included
in turnover.

Impairment
Imentotios

At the end of each reporting period inventories are reviewed for impairment. If any inventary is found to be
impaired the carrying value is reduced to the selling price less costs to complete and sell.

Other tangible and intangible assols

Other tangible and intangible assets are reviewed for impairment if there is an indication that impairment may
have occurred. Where there is evidence of impairment, the affected assets are written down to the
recoverable amount. Any such write down is charged to the surplus o deficit for the period.

Social Housing

Social Housing properties are subject to impairment reviews on completion and then annually thereafter. If
there is evidence of impairment the carrying value of the property is compared to its amended value in use
(AVU), which consists of the net present value of the expected cash flows generated by the asset over its
expected useful life. If the property’s carrying value is higher than its AVU the carrying value must be reduced
to the AVU, the write down is charged to the surplus or deficit for the period.

Unsold first tranche Shared Ownership current assets

On practical completion shared ownership property assets are spilt between current assets for the
unsold first tranche portion and property, plant and equipment for the rental partion,

First tranche current assets are reviewed for impairment if there are indications that the market value of the
property has dropped below that included in the investment appraisal. If any current assets are found to be
impaired the carrying value is reduced to the selling price less costs to complete and sell.

The rental portion is treated as social housing for impairment purposes.

Accrued Income
When, as a result of performing a service or otherwise meeting the requirements of any arrangement with a
third party, income falls due but has not been invoiced in the period, an accrual is made for this income,

Deferred Income
Where payment has been received for goods or services not yet delivered. the amount is initially recorded as
a liability in the Statement Financial Position and recognised as revenue once the delivery has been made.

Financial Instruments
Section 11 Basic Financial Instruments of FRS 102 permits an accounting policy choice for financial
instruments. The Group has chosen to adopt sections 11 and 12 of FRS 102 as permitted by this section.

Rent arrears and other debts

Rent arrears, other amounts due from tenants and other miscellaneous debts are recognised and carried at
original amount of the charge, less provision for impairment. A provision is made and charged to the surplus or
deficit for the period when there is objective evidence that the group will not be able to collect all amounts due
in accordance to the original terms.

Any tenants or miscellaneous debtors who have a payment arrangement fo pay their debts over a period of
longer than the Group's normal terms of business are treated as having a financing transaction. These
transactions are recognised at their present value rather than transaction value. The discount rate used for the
present value calculation is based upon an estimate of the rate the debtor could ohtain in their own right.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash, short-term deposits and other short-term highly liguid investments
with an original maturity of three months or less.
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For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents are as defined above, net of
outstanding bank overdrafts.

Financial assets
The group recognise its financial assets at fair value. Some of the financial assets the group has are
designated as hedging instruments. Hedging is further explained below in the derivative note.

Offselting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis or realise the asset and setfle the liability simultaneously.

Trade payables
Trade payables are not interest-bearing and are stated at their transaction value.

Committed botrowings and bank ovordrafts

Interest bearing loans and overdrafts are recorded at the amounts received, net of direct issue costs using the
effective interest method. Direct issue costs are amortised over the period of the loans and overdrafts to which
they relate. Finance charges, including premiums payable on settiement or redemption are charged to the
surplus or deficit for the peried as incurred using the effective interest rate method and are added to the
carrying value of the borrowings or overdraft to the extent they are not settled in the period in which they arise.

\When the Group enters into a loan facility agreement any associated costs are capitalised, discounted at the
prevailing market rate of interest of the similar loans and amortised over the life of the related loans.

Derivative financial instruments

The group uses various derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to interest rate risks, including
interest rate swaps and options or a combination of these. All derivative instruments are recorded in the
Statement of Financial Position at fair value. The recognition of gains or losses on derivative instruments
depends on whether or not the instrument is designated as a hedging instrurment. The group designates
certain derivatives as either:

(1) a standalone derivative recognised at fair value through the profit or loss; or
(ii) a cash flow hedging instrument.

The full fair value of a hedging derivative is classified as a non-current asset or liability when the derivative
matures in more than 12 months, and as a current asset or liability when the derivative matures in less than 12
maonths.

Costs incurred on cancelling any such instruments are taken to the Statement of Comprehensive Income as
incurred.

Cash flow hedgos

The effective portion of gains or losses on derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges are
recognised in other comprehensive income within the Staterment of Comprehensive Income and subsequently
in the cash flow hedge reserve. The ineffective portion of such gains and losses is recognised in the surplus or
deficit for the period immediately.

Amounts accumulated in the cash flow hedge reserve are reclassified to Statement of Comprehensive Income
in the periods when the hedged item is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, any cumulative gain or loss existing in the cash flow reserve at that time is recognised in the
surplus or deficit for the period.

Social Housing and Other Grants
Social housing grant (SHG) is receivable from Homes England, It is accounted for under section 24 of FRS
102 'Government Grants' using the accrual model. Once properties have been completed the grant is
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classified as a long-term creditor and amortised to the surplus or deficit for the period over the life of the
properties’ structure. Where grants are paid in advance, they are included in creditars until perfarmance is
completed.

If a praperty which received a grant is subsequently sold, or another relevant event takes plage the SHG
appears as a creditor. |t can be recycled for use in a project approved by Homes England or repaid to them if it
is not used within the agreed timescale,

Other grants received are also accounted for under section 24 of FRS 102 using the Accrual Madel,

Pension Costs
The cost of providing retirement pensions and related benefits is accounted for in accardance with Section 28
of FRS 102 'Employes Benefils'.

The Group participates in two pension schemes: a defined benefit scheme, the Local Government Pension
scheme (LGPS) administered by Somerset County Council and a defined contribution scheme with Friends
Life Group. The accounting treatment for the LGPS scheme is described below.

The Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) is accounted for as defined benefit schemes. The assets for
these schemes are held separately from those of the Group in independently administered funds. Pension
scheme assets are measured in accordance with the FRS 102 fair value hierarchy. Pension scheme liabilities
are measured using the projected unit actuarial method and are discounted at the current rate of return on a
high quality corporate bond of equivalent terms and currency to the liability.

The increase in the present value of the liabilities of the Group’s defined benefit pension schemes expected to
arise from employee service in the period is charged to operating profit. The expected return on the schemeas'
assets and the increase during the year in the present value of the schemes' liabilities arising from the
passage of time are included in operating costs. Pension schemes’ surpluses, to the extent that they are
considered recoverable, or deficits, are recognised in full and presented on the face of the Statement of
Financial Position net of the related deferred tax. Actuarial gains and losses which arise from the difference
between actual and expected performance of the scheme are recognised in other comprehensive income.

The LGPS scheme is closed to new starters,

Provisions
General provisions

A provision Is recognised in the balance sheet where the Group has an obligation as a result of a past event,
and it is probable that economic benefits will be required to seltle the obligation. The amount of provision is re-
assessed each year in the light of estimated future income and costs as appropriate.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are only recognised once a formal plan has been approved by the Group's senior
management and communicated to employees.

Deferred Taxation

Deferred taxation is provided in accordance with Section 29 of FRS 102 ‘Income Tax'. It is recaghised in
respect of all timing differences at the reporting date where transactions or events have occurred at that date
that will result in an either an obligation to pay more tax in the future or a right to pay less tax in the future.

A net deferred tax asset is recognised as recoverable and therefore recognised only when, on the basis of all
available evidence, it can be regarded as probable that there will be suitable taxable profits against which to
recover carried forward tax losses and from which the future reversal of underlying timing differences can be
deducted.

Deferred tax is measured on an undiscounted basis at the average tax rates that are expected to apply in the
periods in which the timing differences are expected to reverse based on tax rates and laws that have been
enacled or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
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Critical accounting judgements and estimation uncertainty

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will,
by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year are addressed below.

(i) Investment Properties: Investment properties are revalued annually and the aggregate profit
or loss is transferred to the statement of comprehensive income. The investment property valuation
contains a number of assumptions upon which independent, professionally gualified valuers have
based their valuation of the properties. However, if any assumptions made by the property valuer
prove to be inaccurate, this may mean that the value of the society's properties differs from their
valuation, which could have a material effect an the financial position.

(i)  Defined benefit pension scheme: The group has an obligation to pay pension benefits to
certain employees, The cost of these benefits and the present value of the obligation depend on a
number of factors, including life expectancy, salary increases, asset valuations and the discount rate
on corporate bonds. Management commissions an Actuary to estimate these factors in the
determining the net pension obligation in the statement of financial position. The assumptions reflect
historical experience and current trends.  See note 20 for the disclosures relating to the defined
benefit pension scheme.
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2019 2018
Group Turnover Cost of Operating Gainon  Operating Operating
Sales Expenditure Disposal Surplus/ Surplus/
of PPE (Deficit) (Deficit)
£'000 £°000 E'000 £'000 E°000 £'000
Social housing lettings 45 805 (31,023) 18,872 19,532
First tranche/low cost home
ownership
Sales 10,491 (8,134) 2,357 1,029
Charges for support services 530 (1,225) - (695) (328)
Supporting people 461 - 461 645
Activities other than social housing
Activities 2,652 (4,543) - (1,991) (2,453)
Gain on dispusal of PPE 2,852 2,852 3,808
Total 63,929 {8,134} (36,791} 2,852 21,856 22,233
2019 2018
Society Turnover Cost of Operating Gainon  Operating Operating
Sales Expenditure Disposal Surplus/ Surplus
of PPE {Deficit) {Deficit)
E’000 £'000 £°000 E*000 £'000 £'000
Social housing lettings 49 895 {31,085) - 18,830 19,494
First tranche/low cost home
ownership
Sales 5,921 (4,631) - 1,290 1,030
Charges for support services 530 {1,225) - (625) [(328)
Supporting people 461 - 461 645
Activities other than social housing
Activities 2219 (4,133) - {1,920} (2,321)
Gain on disposal of PPE o g 2,808 2,808 3,800
Total 55,026 {4,631) {36,429) 2,808 20,774 22 320
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2(b) Income and expenditure from social housing letting

Group General Supported Low Cost Home Koy 2018 2018

Meeds Hausing Cwnership Worker Taotal Taotal
£'000 £'000 £'000 E000 £'000 £'000

Income

Rents receivablo 36,729 7.403 1,837 321 46,280 46 188

Service charge income 522 1,512 188 71 2,293 2,266

Amaortised government granl 529 - 54 - 583 545

Other income from Social

Housing Lettings 348 3455 _ 22 - 729 Fod

Turnover from Social Housing

Lettings 38,128 9,274 2,101 392 49,895 49,783

Operating Expenditura

Management 6,916) (1,904) {204) (143) (9,167) (8,508)

Service charge cosls (L2 (1,512) {188) ] (2,.293) (2,268)

Foutine maintenance 5,131) (1,340 - (29) (7.,500) (8,919

Major repairs expenditure (2,744} {B00) - : (3,344) {3.518)

Planned Maintenance (1,096) (240 - () (1,341)

Bad Debis (146) (5) 4 - {152) (216)

Depreciation of Housing

Properties (G,085) (855) {239) 47) (7.228) (6,834)

Impairment of Housing

Properties 5 3 z = =

Dperaling costs (23,640) (5,457) {B531) ({295) (31,023) {30,251)

Operating surplus on Social
Housing Lettings 14,488 2,817 1,470 a7 18,872 19,632

Void Losses 245 a5 15 15 am 284

Included in the depreciation figures above is £174,000 {2018 £197,000) of accelerated depreciation charges
associated with the early replacement of certain components. This accelerated depreciation is recorded within
disposals in note 4.
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2(b) Income and expenditure from social housing letting

Society General Supported Low Cost Home Key 2019 2018

Meeds Housing Cwnarship Worker Total Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £000

Income

Renls receivable 36,729 7,403 1,837 321 48,290 46,188

Service charge income 52z 1612 188 71 2,293 2,256

Amortised government grant 528 - 54 - 583 545

Other income from Social

Housing Lettings 348 358 22 - 728 o4

Turnover from Social Housing o

Lettings 38,128 9,214 2101 392 49,895 49,783

Operating Expenditure

Managament (6.,918) (1,904) (204) (143) (9,167) (8,508)

Service charge costs (522) (1,512} (188) (71) (2,293) (2,258)

Routine mainfanance (6,131) {1,340 - {29) {7.500) {8,9219)

Major repairs expenditure (2,744) (B0 - - {3,344) {3,518)

Planned Maintenance {1,006) {240 - (5) {1,341)

Bad Debts (146) (6) x % (152) (216)

Depreciation of Housing

Properties (6,127) (355) (239) (47) (7,268) (6,872)

Impairment of Housing

Froperties - . - - E

Operating costs {£3,682) (B.457) {631) (255) {31,065) {30,289)

Operating surplus on Social

Housing Lettings 14,446 2,817 1,470 97 18,830 19,494

Void |Losses 246 a5 15 15 am 284

Included in the depreciation figures above is £174,000 (2018: £194,000) of accelerated depreciation charges associated
with the early replacement of certain components. This accelerated depreciation is recorded within disposals in note 4.
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3. Accommodation owned and managed

2019 2018
Mo. of properties Mo. of properties
owned and managed owned and managed
Social Housing
Under development at end of year:
General Needs Housing (Social Rent) BO 45
General Meeds Housing (Affordable Rent) 83 &1
Supported Housing 0 -
Low Cost Home Ownership N 196 ¥
Total under development at end of year _ 359 184
Under Management at end of year:
General Needs Housing 7,629 7.613
Supported Housing 1,668 1,668
Low Cost Home Ownership 766 701
Key Worker Housing 38 36
Total under management at end of year 10,099 _ 10,018
Non-Social Housing
Market Rented 7 7
Leaseholders 303 303
10,409 ) 10,328

A5
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4.  Surplus on Ordinary Activities

Group
The operating surplus is stated after charging/{crediting);-

Auditors’ remuneration (excluding VAT):
Audit of the group financial statements
Audit of subsidiaries

Taxation compliance services

Other professional services

Operating lease rentals — other
Inventory - cost of sales

Impairment losses - housing properties
Depraciation of housing properties
Depreciation of other fixed assets
Amortisation

Society
The operating surplus is stated after charging/{crediting):-

Auditors’ remuneration (excluding VAT):

Audit of the financial statements {including subsidiaries)
Taxation compliance services

Other professional services

Operating lease rentals

Inventory — Cost of Sales

Impairment losses of housing properties

Depreciation of housing properties

Depreciation of other fixed assets

Amortisation

Yarlington Housing Group
Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 March 2019

2018 2018
£'000 E£'000
36 41

18 8

18 25
320 245
967 B4
7,226 6,640
167 210
185 271
2019 2018
£'000 £000
53 41

8 i

320 245
8967 504
7,268 B675
167 210
185 271



5. Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, plant and equipment (fixed assets)
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Group Right to Right to Shared Others Total Total
Buy Acquire Ownership
Staircasing
2018 2018
£'000 £000 E'000 E'000 £°000 £'000
Procesds of sales 1,563 800 1,331 1,707 5,401 7,163
Less; Costs of sales (307) (46) (574) (350) (1,277) (1,603)
Amount payable to 35DC under
claw back agresment (1.006) - - (61) = (1,067) (1,404)
250 o4 8496 1,357 3,057
Surplus 4,156
Capital grant recycled (note 23) {37) - (168) - {205) {348)
Disposal proceeads fund {note 24) 3
213 754 528 1,357 2,852 3,808
Society Right to Right to Shared Others Total Total
Buy Acquire Ownership
Staircasing
2019 2018
£'000 £'000 £'000 E'000 £000 £'000
Proceeds of salas 1,663 800 1,331 1,707 5,401 7,163
Less: Costs of sales (311) (4B) (575) (389) {1,321) {1,612)
Amount payable to SSDC under
claw back agresment {1,008) a (61) = (1,067) _ (1,404)
Surplus 246 754 895 1,318 3,013 4,148
Capital grant recycled (Note 23) (37) - (168) - (205) (348)
Disposal proceeds fund (Note 24} - - - A = -
209 754 527 1,318 2,808 3,800

&7




6. Interest payable and financing costs

Deferred benefit pansion charge
On loans repayable within five years

On loans wholly or partly repayable in maore than five

Years
Costs associated with financing

Less: interest costs capitalised on housing properties

under construction

7. Taxation

Current tax

UK corporate tax expense
Adjustments in respect of prior years
Total current tax

Deferred tax

Met origination and reversal of timing
differences

Total deferred tax

Tax on ordinary activities

Yarlington Housing Group
Annual Report and Financial Staterments
For the Year Ended 31 March 2019

Group
2019 2018
£'000 E'000
899 1,068
950 917
6,209 5,038
I 23
8,125 7,945
~(201) {379)
7,924 7,566
Group
2019 2018
E'000 £'000
- a
— :
o 1
- . 1
- B

Society
2019 2018
£'000 £°000
899 1,062
1,240 914
5972 58917
23 23
8,134 7,823
_{201) {373)
7,933 7,044
Society
2019 2018
£'000 £7000
= B
- 5
- 5

The tax assessed in the year is lower than the standard rate of corporation tax in the United Kingdom at 19% (2018;
18%). The differences are explained as follows,

A48
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7. Taxation (continued)

Profit on ordinary activities

Profit on ordinary activities multiplied by standard
rate of Garporation Tax in the UK 18% (2017:
20%)

Effects of:
Profit from charitable activities
Expenses not deductible
Tax rate changes
Disposal of investment properties
Revaluation of investment properties
Profits/{Losses) from LLP
Group relief not paid for
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of prior
periods
Total tax charge/{credit)

Factors that may affect future tax charges

Yarlington Housing Group
Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 March 2019

Group Society
2019 2018 2019 2018
£'000 £'000 £°000 £'000
14,059 14,825 12,976 14,995
2,671 2,817 2,465 2,849
{2,673) (2,817) (2,438) {2,838)
1 - a
2 (27) (8)
() 1 (5) *

_(6) 6 s 9

The July 2015 Budget Statement announced changes to the UK corporation tax rate which reduced the main rate
of corporation tax to 19% from 1 April 2017 and to 18% from 1 April 2020. The Finance Act 2016 reduced the main
rate of corporation tax to 17% from 1 April 2020. These changes were substantively enacted on 26 October 2015
and 6 September 2016 respectively, and accordingly deferred tax balances within the financial statements have

been calculated using a rate of 17% (2018: 17%).

8. Losses on Financial instruments

Group and society

Financial liabilities measurad at fair value
through profit or loss

2019
Frofit and loss Other comprehensive
income
Gains Losses Gains Losses
£'000 £000 £'000 £000
(249)
- = (249)

Financial liakilities measured at fair value
through profit or loss

Profit and loss

Gains
£'000

Losses
£°000

2018
Other comprehensive
income
Losses Gains
£'000 £000
881
- 881
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9. Directors’ Remuneration

Directors are key management personnel, defined as members of the Board, the Chief Executive and Executive
Officers.

20149 2018
£'000 £°000
The aggregate emoluments paid or receivable by non-executive
Directors and former non-executive directors 47 47
The aggregate emoluments paid or receivable by executive Directors
and former executive Directors 751 582
The emoluments paid to the highest paid Directors excluding pension 170 177
contributions
The aggregate amount of Directors or past Directors pensions, 78 57

excluding amounts payable under a properly funded pension scheme.

The aggregate amount of any consideration payable to Directors far - -
loss of office

The Chief Executive was the highest paid Director (1.4.18-28.9, 18). He is an ordinary member of the Somerset
County Council Local Government pension scheme. No enhancement or special terms apply, a contribution of
£15k (2018: £21k) was paid. He has no individual pension arrangements to which the Group makes a
contribution. The Director Of Finance & Corporate Services was the highest paid Director (29.9.18 — 31.3.19). She
is an ordinary member of the Somerset County Council Local Government pension scheme. Mo enhancement or
special terms apply, a contribution of £20k (2018; £1 8k) was paid. She has no individual pension arrangements to
which the Group makes a contribution.

10. Employee Information

Group Society
2019 2018 2019 2018

No. No. No. No.
The average number of persons employed
during the year expressed in full time
equivalents (37 hours per week) was:
Office Staff 207 202 186 184
Maintenance Staff 85 57 85 57
Scheme Managers, Caretakers and 43 44 43 44
Cleaners - - - L

335 303 324 295
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10. Employee Information {continued)

Group Society
2019 2018 2019 2018
Staff costs E'000 £°000 £'000 £'000
Wages and salaries 10,540 8,876 10,269 8,645
Social security costs 1,081 B86 1,057 864
Other pension costs 1.611 1,519 1,594 1,506
13,232 11,281 12,820 11,015

The charge for the year for the defined benefit scheme (see note 21) was £2,238,000 (2018: £2,330,000).

Group

Aggregate number of full-time equivalent staff whose 2019 2018
remuneration exceeded (including employer pension No. No.
contributions)

ED - £59,099 318 292
£60,000 - £69,999
£70,000 - £79,5498
£80,000 - £89,998
£90,000 - £99,999
£100,000 - £109,989
£110,000 - £119,999
£120,000 - £129,989
£130,000 - £139,989
£140,000 - £149,999
£150,000 - £159,999 -
£160,000 - £169,999 2
E170,000 - £179,999

E180,000 - £189,899 - -
£190,000 - £199,899 - -
£200,000 - £209,899 - 1

R e T e B I

T ST S

All employees within the Group that do not work for the Society are in the category £0 - £59,998.
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11. Intangible assets
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Intangible assets are entirely made up of computer software costs used within the business. Costs include
staff time required to develop the software to meet specific business needs.

Cost at start of the year
Additions

Disposals

At end of the year

Accumulated amortisation at start of
year

Provision for year
Disposals
At end of year

Net book value

a2

Group Society
2019 2018 2019
£'000 £'000 £'000
1,213 1,149 1,213
118 74 118
0 (10) 0
1,331 1,213 1,331
(929) (660) (924)
(183) (273) (184)
0 bl — -
(1,112) (930) (1,113)
219 283 218
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Yarlington Housing Group
Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 March 2013

12 (c). Fixed Asset Investments

Group Companies

The Society has four wholly owned subsidiaries, Yarlington Property Management ("YPMT), which provides
maintenance services to third parties, Yarlington Homes Ltd (*YHL"), which provides development services to the
Society, Inspired to Achieve (i2a) which provides employment skills advice and mentoring and Yarlington Treasury
Services plc ("YTS"), which has issued our listed bond. YPM & YHL started trading on 1 October 2004. Inspired to
Achieve was acquired on the 2™ October 2014. Yarlington Treasury Services was incorporated on the 180
September 2017. The Society holds one £1 Ordinary share in both YPM and i2a and twelve thousand five hundred
£1 ordinary shares in ¥YTS.

The Society held 3,000,000 £1 Ordinary shares in YHL at the start of the financial year and purchased an additional
3,000,000 shares of £1 each on the 21% March 2018. On the 30" March 2016 74,210 ordinary shares of £1 2ach
were cancelled and extinguished and debited to accumulated profit.

The Society has the right to appoint members to the Boards of the four subsidiaries and therefore exercises control
over them.

Associates and joint ventures
The Group through Yarlington Homes Ltd owns 25% of Advantage South West LLP ('ASW'); a limited liability
partnership. ASW was set up in May 2004 as a consortium to obtain value for money in procurement.

13 Investment properties
Group Society

2019 2018 2018 2018

£'000 E'0na £'000 £'ooo
At the start of the year 0,952 9.998 9,952 9,998
Additions 184 2 184 -
Disposals (115) (110} (115) {110)
Gain from adjustment in value {121) G4 (121) B4
At end of year 9,900 9952 9,900 9,952

Investment properties were valued at 31 March 2018 by Savills professional gualified external valuers. The
valuation of properties was undertaken in accordance with the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors Valuation
Standards and has been made on an open market basis. Future rent increases are assumed at CPl and a 10% void
allowance has been assumed.

14. Stock and work in progress
Group Society
2019 2018 2019 2013
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Consumable maintenance stock 246 79 246 TS
Properties held for sale
Shared ownership properties:
Completed 3,215 1,018 3,215 1,028
Work in progress 1,810 1,860 1,823 1,854
Cutright sale properties: construction
Work in progress 6,576 7,100 - -
Surplus properties held for disposal - a6 - 106
11,847 10,133 5,284 3,068
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15. Trade and other debtors

Group Society

2019 2018 2019 2018

£'000 £'000 £'000 E'D00

Rent arrears 1,324 1,274 1,324 1,274
Less provision for bad debts (872) (852) (872) {852)
Social housing grant receivable 2,175 1,076 2175 1,076
Prepayments and accrued income 1,762 837 1,347 928
Amounts due from group undertakings - - 435 830
Loans to group undertakings - - 0 549
Other debtors 2,147 1,894 2137 1,869
- 6,536 4,329 6,546 5674

Other debtors includes £0k (2018: £23k) falling due after more than one year,

Short-term funding facilities are available to Yarlington Homes Ltd, a subsidiary of the Society. These facilities are
EBm (2018 £8 million) and are secured by a floating charge against Yarington Homes Ltd's assets and are
repayable one month on demand with a final repayment date of 4 years. Interest is payable at 2% abowve the 1 month
LIBOR rate. As at 31 March 2019, £0 million were drawn down (2018: £0.549m)

16. Investments
Group Society
2019 2018 2019 2018
£°000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Investments at cost 75 Fits 75 75
75 75 75 75

Investment in Somerset Savings & Loans

During 2013/14, Yarlington Housing Group made a cash investment of £15,000 with Somerset Savings & Loans: the
investment provides an annual return of 2%. Somerset Savings & Loans is a community owned, not-for-profit
financial co-operative. Our investment allows our tenants to apply for short term loans and save through Somerset
Savings & Loans,

Investment in Smarterbuys

During 2014-15, Yarlington Housing Group made a cash investment of £30,000 with Smarterbuys, with two further
investments of £15,000 in 2015-16 and 2016-17 to give a total investment of £60,000: the investment provides an
annual return of 5%. Smarterbuys aims to offer a credible alternative to high interest stores and loan sharks; it is a
website that offers essential household items, including furniture, electrical items and white goods, at a significant
discount from the recommended retail price, with access to responsible credit,

The Directors consider the inherent value of both investments is in providing our residents access to these products
and that the full carrying value is supported.

=1F



17. Cash and Cash equivalents

Yarlington Housing Group

Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 21 March 2018

Group Society
2019 2018 2019 2018
£'000 E000 £'000 £'000
Cash at bank 257 46 248 15
Short term deposits 50,716 32,082 50,715 32,082
___ 50972 32128 50,963 32,007
Analysis of group cash and cash equivalents
As at Cash As at 31
April flow March
2018 E000 2019
£000 £°000
Cash at bank 46 211 257
Short term deposits 32,082 18,633 50,715
32,128 18,844 50,972
18{a). Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Group Society
2019 2018 2019 2018
£'000 £'000 £000 £000
Loans and overdrafts 1,200 7.109 1,200 7,108
Trade creditors arg 630 508 G658
Amounts owed to group undertakings - - 21,930 2,345
Rents and service charges paid in advance 1,835 1,886 1,828 1,896
Corpaoration tax - 5 - 5
Other taxation and social security payable 44 23 92 51
Accruals and deferred income 9770 g.132 8428 7,693
SHG to be released in 1 year 606 588 806 589
Deferred capital grant (note 22) - 2 . 2
Recycled capital grant fund (note 23) 823 Ti7 823 777
Disposal proceeds fund (note 24) 192 655 192 655
Other creditors 1,516 1,638 1,516 1,489
16,365 22,416 37,121 23,279

Amounts owed by group undertakings represent transaction with companies within the group, with which the
company has a long term financing relationship. These financing relationships are expected to continue for the

foreseeable future.

As the loans have been made to fellow group undertakings, which have sufficient net assets and facilities in place to
meet their obligations to the company as they fall due, the directors consider the credit risk to be low and no

provision is made against amounts due.

Amounts owed by group undertakings are carried at amortised cost and secured on certain housing property asseals,

The amounts are non-instalment debts.
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18(b). Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

Bank Loans between 1 and 2 years by instalments
Bank Loans between 3 and 5 years by instalments
Bank Loans repayable in maore than & years by instalments

Less costs of issue — amortised loan costs
Add accrued income

Social Housing Grant

Deferred capital grant

Total

19{a). Debt analysis — drawn facilities

Loans repayable by instalments:

Within one year

In one year or more but less than two years
In two years or more and less than five years
I five years ar more

Loans not repayable by instalments
Less loan issue costs
Add accrued income

Total

Group Society
2019 2018 2019 2018
E'000 E£'000 E'000 E'000
19,008 15,521 19,008 15,521
35,938 30,BBS 35,938 30,885
164,298 148483 143,538 147,344
{(1,062) (1,089) (428) (448)
2,363 2,459 2,363 2,459
68,781 65408 68,781 55,408
o 0 0 0 0
289,325 261,667 269,200 261,169

Group Society
2019 2018 2018 2018
£'000 E'qon E'000 £000
1,200 7,109 1,200 7,109
19,008 15,521 19,008 15,521
35,928 30,885 35,938 30,885
164,298 148,483 143,538 148 483
{1,062) (1,089) (428) {1,088)
2,363 2,458 2,363 2458
221,745 203,367 201,619 203,367

The Group has issued a £120m bond (£60m is retained) on the London Stock Exchange. The bond has a duration

of 30 years and a fixed interest rate of £3.41%.

The loans are repayable monthly/quarterly at varying rates of interest and are due to be repaid at various points with

the final borrowings maturing in 2038.

The interest rate profile of YHG at 31% March 2019 was:

Total
£000
Instalment loans 220,444

MNon-instalments loans -

Variable

Rate
£'000

20,000

Fixed
Rate
£'000

200,444

19(b}. Debt analysis — undrawn facilities

AL 31 March 2019 YHG has the following borrowing facilities:

Undrawn committed facilities
Undrawn facilities
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Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Rate Term
Yo Years
3.45%
£000
38,341
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Financial Instruments

{a) Descriptions

Yarlington Housing Group holds several different types of financial instruments which it uses to fund
activities and uses derivative financial instruments to manage its interest rate risk. [If certain criteria laid
down in Section 12 '‘Cther financial instruments of FRS 102" are met the directors may judge it appropriate to
link a derivative financial instrument to a financial instrument recognised at amortised cost in a hedging
relationship.  This allows the effective portion of gains and losses on the derivative instrument, the hedging
instrument, to be deferred in a cashflow hedge reserve until the impact of the amortised cost instrument, the
hedged item, is seen in the profit or loss for the pericd. The amount of the change in fair value of the
hedging instrument that was recognised in other comprehensive income during the year was a loss of £249k
{2018: gain of £881k).

The ineffective portion of these gains or losses is recognised in the profit or loss for the period immediately.
The directors judge that the use of hedging relationships reduces volatility in the group's financial results.

The characteristics of the main classes of financial instrumeant held are given below:

Interest rate swaps

Fixed rated loans

Floating rated loans
Disposal proceeds fund
Recycled capital grant fund

(b} Classifications

Amortised cost

Basic financial instruments such as loans are measured at amortised cost. This is calculated using the
effective interest rate method. For floating rated loans and fixed rate loans with no interest rate changes the
effective interest will equal the amount of interest paid. For fixed rated loans which have changes in interest
rate over the life of the loan the effective interest rate will average the different interest rates over the life of
the loan. The effective interest is the amount that is recognised in profit or loss.

Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)

Complex financial instruments, such as derivatives are recognised at Fair Value through Profit or Loss. At
the end of each financial period their value is calculated by looking at an active market of similar instruments
and establishing what their value would be if they were traded on that market, their Fair Value. Any changes
in the fair value are recognised in profit or loss ie. above surplus before tax in the statement of
comprehensive income.

Equity

Equity is the difference between an entity’s total assets and total liabilities. Where a company has joint or a
controlling interest in another company its share of the equity in that company is recognised in its financial
statements.

Financial instrument carrying values
The group has the following financial instruments

2019 2018
£'000 £'000
Financial instruments that are debt instruments measured at amortised
cost
Trade and rent debtors 453 422
Other grants receivable £ z
Other debtors 6,088 3,908
6,541 4,331
Financial instruments that are equity instruments measured
at cost less impairment
Investment in joint venture {Group only) 1 106
111 106
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20.

Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss
Derivative financial instruments held to manage interest rates
Interest rate swaps

Financial instruments measured at amortised cost
Fixed rate loans

Floating rated loans

Disposal proceeads fund

Recycled Capital Grant Fund

Trade creditors

Accruals

Other creditors

Loan commitments measured at cost less impairment
Drawn committed borrowings
Carrying value of drawn committed borrowings

Loan commitments measured at cost less impairment
Undrawn committed borrowings
Carrying value of undrawn committed borrowings

The society has the following financial instruments

Financial instruments that are debt instruments measured at
amortised cost

Trade and rent debtors

Other grants receivable

Other debtors

Financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss
Derivative financial instrumeants held to manage interest rates
Interest rate swaps

Financial instruments measured at amortised cost
Fixed rate loans

Floating rated loans

Disposal proceeds fund

Recycled Capital Grant Fund

Trade creditors

Accruals

Other creditors

Loan commitments measured at cost less impairment
Drawn committed borrowings
Carrying value of drawn commilted borrowings

Loan commitments measured at cost less impairment
Undrawn committed borrowings
Carrying value of undrawn committed borrowings

Yarlington Housing Group
Annual Report and Financial Statements

For the Year Ended 31 March 2019

2019 2018
£'000 £000
(8,152) (7,804)
(8,152) (7.904)
(200,444)  (178,584)
{20,000} (23,415)
(192) (655)
(823) (777)
(379) (680)
(9,770) (9,086)
(6,201) (11,167)
(236,809)  (224,364)
220,444 201 999
220,444 201 999
39,240 58.860
30,240 58,860
2019 2018
£'000 £000
453 427
1,785 1,076
4,302 4176
6,540 5 674
2019 2018
£'000 £'000
(8,152) (7,904)
(8,152) (7,904)
(179,684)  (178.584)
(20,000) (23,415)
(192) (655)
(823) (777)
(508) (362)
(8,426) (2,760)
27.172) (18.673)
(236,805 025 276)
__ 199,684 201,999
199,684 201,999
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Pension Obligations

Yarlington Housing Group participates in two schemes, the Local Government Pension Scheme
(LGPS), which is a defined benefits scheme providing benefits on final pensionable pay and a defined
contribution scheme with Aviva, The LGPS scheme is closed to new employees.

In calculating the net present value of the liability included within provisions the actuary has used a
discount rate based on a market rate AA corporate bond for the same period as the contractual
abligations.

Group and Society

2019 2018

£'000 £1000
At start of year (36,447 {38,897)
Additional liabilities in the year 408 (904)
Interest for the year 220 (259)
Remeasurements 587 3,613
At end of year (35,232) (36,447)

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined-benefit scheme, with the assets held in separate funds administered by
Somerset County Council. The total contributions made for the year ended 31 March 2015 were £3.0m
(2018: £1.81m), of which employer's contributions totalled £2.6m (2018 £1.40m) and employees’
contributions totalled £0.4m {2018: £0.4m). The agreed contribution rates for future years are 14.5% for
employers plus a lump sum payment of £560,000 {2018: £647,000) and range from 5.5% to 12.5% for
employees, depending on salary.

Principal Actuarial Assumptions

The following information is based upon a full actuarial valuation of the fund at 31 March 2016 updated to
31 March 2018 by a gualified independent actuary.

At 31 March At 31 March
2019 2018
Rate of increase in salaries 3.90% 3.80%
Rate of increase for pension in payment/inflation 2.40% 2.30%
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 2.40% 2.55%
Inflation assumption (CFI) 2.40% 2.30%
Commutation of pensions to lump sums 50.00% 50.00%

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates.
The assumed life expectations on retirement age 63 are!

At 31 March 2019 At 31 March 2018

Years Years
Retiring today
Males 22.9 24.0
Females 24.0 262
Retiring in 20 years
Males 24.6 26.2
Females 25.8 27.5
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Pension Obligations (continued)

Yarlington Housing Group

Annual Repoert and Financial Statements

For the Year Ended 31 March 2019

Analysis of the amount charged to operating costs in the Statement of Comprehensive [ncome

Employer service cost (net of employee contributions)

Past service cost
Administration expenses
Total operating charge

Analysis of pension finance income/(costs)
Interest on pension scheme assets

Interest on pension liabilities

Amounts charged to financing costs

At 31 March
2019

£'000
{2,004)

{210)

(25)

(2,239)

1,076

(1,975)
(899)

At 31 March
2018
£'000

(2,294)
(14)
(22)

(2,330)

1,111
(2,180)

_ (1,089)

The employers’ cash contributions for the financial year were £2,622,000 (2018; £1,404,000). The
estimated employers' cash contributions for the coming year are £1,341,000.

Actuarial gains/(losses) on pension scheme assets — return

on assets less interest

Actuarial (losses)/gains on scheme liabilities -
remeasurements

Actuarial gain/({loss) recognised

Movement in deficit during year

Deficit in scheme at 1 April

Movement in year:

Employer service cost (net of employee contributions)
Employer contributions

Past service cost

Met interestireturn on assets

Remeasurements

Deficit in scheme at 31 March

At 31 March At 31 March
2019 2018
£'000 £'000
1,144 83z

587 3613
1,731 4,445

At 31 March At 31 March

2019 2018

£'000 £'000
(36,447) (38,897)
(2,004) (2.204)
2,622 1,404
{210) (14)
220 (259)
E87 3.613
(35,232) (36,447)
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21. Pension contributions {continued)
Asset and Liability Reconciliation At 31 March At 31 March
2019 2018
E'000 £7000

Reconciliation of liabilities
Liabilities at start of period 78,082 78.528
Service cost 2,004 2,294
Interest cost 1,975 2180
Employes contributions 383 409
Remeasurements (587) (3,613)
Benefits paid {1,897) {1,730)
Past Service cost 210 14
Curtailments and settlements i
Liabilities at end of period 80,170 78,082
Reconciliation of assets

2019 2018

£'000 £'000
Assets at start of period 41,635 39,631
Interest on assets 1,076 1,141
Return on assets less interest 1,144 832
Administration expenses (25) (22)
Employer contributions 2,622 1,404
Employee contributions 383 409
Benefits paid (1.897) (1,730)
Other actuarial losses £ =
Assets at end of period 44,938 41,635
Breakdown of assets by type 20189 2018

£'000 £°000
Equities 31,409 29721
Gilts 2,552 2,253
Other bonds 4,105 3,800
Froperty 3,912 3,953
Cash - 2,960 1,808
Assets at end of period 44,938 41,635

Defined contribution scheme

As noted on page 58, the Group also operates a defined contribution scheme with Aviva. Employees
contribute a percentage of their salary into the scheme and YHG will double this contribution up to a cap of
12%. Monies are paid into an investment pot held by Friends Life and invested on behalf of the employees.
Total matched confributions made in the year were £283,000 (2018 £118,000).

22 Deferred capital grant

Group and Society

20149 2018
E'000 £'000
At the start of the year 2 3
Released to income in the year (2) (1)
At the end of the year - 2
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Amaount due to be released <1 year
Amount due to be released = 1 year

23. Recycled capital grant fund

At the start of the year
Inputs: Grants recycled

Interest accrued
Recycling: MNew build
At the end of the year

24. Disposal proceeds fund

At the start of the year
Funds recycled
Interest accrued
Usefallocation of funds
Mew build
At the end of the year

25, Capital commitments

Capital expenditure that has been contracted for
but is not provided for in the financial statements

Capital expenditure that has been authorised by
the Board but not contracted for

YHG expects these commitments to be financed
with:

Social housing grant

Committed loan facilities and sales

Yarlington Housing Group
Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 March 2019

2018 2018
E'000 £'000
- 2

- 2

Group and Society

2019 2018
£°000 £°000
i 427
205 348
3 2
_ (182) ey
823 T

Group and Society

2019 2018
E'000 E'000
655 652
2 3
(465) ; :
192 B55
Group Society
2019 2018 2019 2018
£'000 E000 £'000 £000
38,252 5,364 33,058 5,364
- 24,186 _ 2,804 24 526
39,2562 28,551 36,762 25,881
1,454 3,891 1,454 3,891
37,798 25,660 35,307 28,000
30,252 28,551 38,762 28,691
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26. Operating Leases

YHG holds office equipment under non-cancellable operating leases. At the end of the year the YHG had
commitments of future minimum lease payments as follows:-

Group Society

FPayments due 2019 2018 2019 2018

£'000 £'000 E’000 £'000
Mot later than one year 102 79 102 79
Later than one year but not later than five 374 333 74 333
years
Later than five years - - - .
Total 476 412 476 412

The lease agreements do not include any contingent rent or restrictions, Some operating leases for motor
vehicles include purchase options.

27. Related parties

Yarlington Housing Group is the Parent entity in the Group and ultimate controlling party. The Group has
taken advantage of the exemption available under Section 33 FRS 102 not to disclose transactions with
wholly owned subsidiary undertakings.

The following are related parties:

During the year, the Society employed a Procurement Manager and a Contract Manager on behalf of
Advantage South West LLP, an investment held by its subsidiary Yarlington Homes Ltd. Yarlington
Housing Group provides financial and secretarial support to Advantage South West LLP. The cosis
associated with these posts and the support are recharged on to Advantage South West LLP. The costs
were £137.975 for the period until the 31st March 2019 (2018: £140,486). Yarlington Housing Group's
annual fee for membership of Advantage South West LLP's procurement consortium was £16,885
excluding VAT (2018: £19,209).
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